

STATE OF OKLAHOMA

2nd Session of the 48th Legislature (2002)

SENATE BILL 983

By: Herbert

AS INTRODUCED

An Act relating to motor vehicles; amending 47 O.S. 2001, Sections 14-103D, 1103, 1105, 1107, 1110, 1113, 1114, 1115, 1115.1, 1116.1, 1117, 1120.1, 1127, 1133, 1134, 1134.1, 1134.2, 1135, 1137.1 and 1151, which relate to transportation of manufactured homes and the Oklahoma Vehicle License and Registration Act; modifying circumstances under which manufactured home may be transported or moved on public road or highway; deleting provisions relating to issuance of certain permits; stating legislative intent; specifying attributes and contents of form set; modifying procedures for issuance, use and disposition of vehicle license plate and certain documents; providing that certain items remain valid until expiration; providing procedures upon renewal of vehicle registration or sale or transfer of vehicle title; providing for use of retained license plate for registration of other vehicle; prohibiting possession of more than one license plate for any vehicle; specifying certain requirements applicable to vehicle license plates; providing procedures upon cancellation of vehicle license plate; providing for design and issuance of vehicle registration decal; providing for transfer of decal; providing that vehicle registration taxes and fees not be refundable; providing for documentation of decal if windshield destroyed; prohibiting certain acts and providing penalty; modifying procedure for endorsement of title and notification to Oklahoma Tax Commission upon sale of vehicle; providing procedure for release of security interest upon sale or transfer of vehicle; requiring that certain amounts remain obligation of seller or transferor; specifying certain authority of Tax Commission; providing for issuance of permanent license plates; modifying vehicles in which certificate of registration required to be carried; specifying requirements relating to license plates and decals for manufactured homes; deleting certain procedure and fee upon loss or destruction of decals; modifying vehicles required to be registered annually; requiring that decals be made available on certain date for such vehicles; clarifying language; modifying authority of certain peace officers; providing for affixing of decal to manufactured home; providing for issuance of registration decal upon payment of certain fees; deleting obsolete language; deleting provision relating to grounds for driver license revocation and certain penalty; deleting exception; requiring motor vehicle dealers to submit certain document to Tax Commission; repealing 47 O.S.

2001, Section 1113A, which relates to the Oklahoma Vehicle License and Registration Act; providing for codification; and providing an effective date.

BE IT ENACTED BY THE PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF OKLAHOMA:

SECTION 1. AMENDATORY 47 O.S. 2001, Section 14-103D, is amended to read as follows:

Section 14-103D. A. No person shall transport or move a manufactured home on any public road or highway in this state, except as otherwise provided by law, without a permit issued pursuant to the provisions of Sections 14-103A and 14-103C of this title and subsection B of this section, ~~and without evidence that the required registration fees, excise taxes, or ad valorem taxes have been paid on such manufactured home.~~

B. In addition to the permit information required by the provisions of Sections 14-103A and 14-103C of this title, the permit shall also include the following:

1. The name of the owner of the manufactured home;
2. The serial number or identification number of the manufactured home;
3. A legal description or the physical address of the location from which the manufactured home is to be moved; and
4. A legal description or the physical address of the location to which the manufactured home is to be moved.

C. ~~Except as otherwise provided by law, the Department of Public Safety shall not issue a permit to any person to transport or move a manufactured home without evidence of payment of the required registration fees, ad valorem or excise taxes on such manufactured home; provided:~~

1. ~~Upon proof of possession of a dealer or in-transit license plate, issued by the Oklahoma Tax Commission according to the~~

~~provisions of subsection D of Section 1128 of this title, the Department of Public Safety shall issue a permit to the holder of such license; and~~

~~2. The Department shall issue a permit to the holder of a perfected security interest in a manufactured home, or a licensed representative thereof, pursuant to a lawful repossession of the manufactured home, if the holder or representative is bonded by the state, to move the manufactured home to a secure location with a repossession affidavit; provided, all registration fees, excise taxes or ad valorem taxes due on such home shall be required to be paid within thirty (30) days of the issuance of the permit.~~

~~D. For the purposes of subsections A and C of this section, an excise tax receipt, and manufactured home registration receipt and Manufactured Home Registration Decal attached to a certificate of title for a manufactured home or receipts and decal as authorized by subsection C of Section 1117 of this title shall be evidence of payment of the excise tax and registration fees required pursuant to the provisions of Section 1135 of this title and Section 2104.3 of Title 68 of the Oklahoma Statutes. A receipt for taxes paid from the county treasurer of the county in which the manufactured home is located shall be evidence of payment of the ad valorem taxes required by the provisions of Section 2801 et seq. of Title 68 of the Oklahoma Statutes.~~

~~E. The Department of Public Safety shall notify the Oklahoma Tax Commission, the county assessor of the county from which the manufactured home is to be moved and the county assessor of the county in which the manufactured home is to be moved of any permits issued pursuant to the provisions of this section.~~

SECTION 2. AMENDATORY 47 O.S. 2001, Section 1103, is amended to read as follows:

Section 1103. A. It is the intent of the Legislature that the owner or owners of every vehicle in this state shall possess a

certificate of title as proof of ownership and that every vehicle shall be registered in the name of the owner or owners thereof. All registration and license fees and mileage taxes imposed by ~~this act~~ the Oklahoma Vehicle License and Registration Act shall be for the purpose of providing funds for the general governmental functions of the state, counties, municipalities and schools and for the maintenance and upkeep of the avenues of public access of this state. Such registration and license fees shall apply to every vehicle operated upon, over, along or across any avenue of public access within this state and when paid in full, shall be in lieu of all other taxes, general and local, unless otherwise specifically provided.

B. It is the further intent of the Legislature that, effective January 1, 2003, the Oklahoma Tax Commission and motor license agents shall, in lieu of the present procedure for registering vehicles, implement a system to issue a permanent license plate to a natural person or other legal entity owning a vehicle for the purpose of identifying the person or legal entity, and to issue a vehicle windshield decal for the purpose of identifying the vehicle registered according to the type of vehicle and based upon the amount of the vehicle registration fee paid as provided for in Section 4 of this act or other provisions of this title.

SECTION 3. AMENDATORY 47 O.S. 2001, Section 1105, is amended to read as follows:

Section 1105. A. As used in the Oklahoma Vehicle License and Registration Act, ~~Section 1101 et seq. of this title:~~

1. "Salvage vehicle" means any vehicle which is within the last ten (10) model years and which has been damaged by collision or other occurrence to the extent that the cost of repairing the vehicle for safe operation on the highway exceeds sixty percent (60%) of its fair market value, as defined by Section 1111 of this title, immediately prior to the damage. For purposes of this

section, actual repair costs shall only include labor and parts for actual damage to the suspension, motor, transmission, frame or unibody and designated structural components;

2. "Rebuilt vehicle" means any salvage vehicle which has been rebuilt and inspected for the purpose of registration and title;

3. "Flood-damaged vehicle" means a salvage or rebuilt vehicle which was damaged by flooding or a vehicle which was submerged at a level to or above the dashboard of the vehicle and on which an amount of loss was paid by the insurer;

4. "Recovered-theft vehicle" means a salvage or rebuilt vehicle which was recovered from a theft; and

5. "Junked vehicle" means any vehicle which is incapable of operation or use on the highway, has no resale value except as a source of parts or scrap and has an eighty percent (80%) loss in fair market value.

B. The owner of every vehicle in this state shall possess a certificate of title as proof of ownership of such vehicle, except those vehicles registered pursuant to Section 1120 of this title and trailers registered pursuant to Section 1133 of this title, previously titled in another state and engaged in interstate commerce, and except as provided in subsection M of this section. There shall be six types of certificates of title:

1. Original title for any motor vehicle which is not a remanufactured, salvage, rebuilt or junked vehicle;

2. Salvage title for any motor vehicle which is a salvage vehicle or is specified as a salvage vehicle or the equivalent thereof on a certificate of title from another state;

3. Rebuilt title for any motor vehicle which is a rebuilt vehicle;

4. Junked title for any motor vehicle which is a junked vehicle or is specified as a junked vehicle or the equivalent thereof on a certificate of title from another state;

5. Classic title for any motor vehicle, except a junked vehicle, which is twenty-five (25) model years or older; and

6. Remanufactured title for any vehicle which is a remanufactured vehicle.

Application for a certificate of title, whether the initial certificate of title or a duplicate, may be made to the Oklahoma Tax Commission or any motor license agent. When application is made with a motor license agent, the application information shall be transmitted either electronically or by mail to the Tax Commission by the motor license agent. If the application information is transmitted electronically, the motor license agent shall forward the required application along with evidence of ownership, where required, by mail. Where the transmission of application information cannot be performed electronically, the Tax Commission is authorized to provide postage paid envelopes to motor license agents for the purpose of mailing the application along with evidence of ownership, where required. The Tax Commission shall upon receipt of proper application information issue an Oklahoma certificate of title. The certificates may be mailed to the applicant. Upon issuance of a certificate of title, the Tax Commission shall provide the appropriate motor license agent with confirmation of such issuance.

C. 1. The application for certificate of title shall be upon a blank form furnished by the Tax Commission, containing:

- a. a full description of the vehicle,
- b. the manufacturer's serial or other identification number,
- c. the motor number and the date on which first sold by the manufacturer or dealer to the owner,
- d. any distinguishing marks,
- e. a statement of the applicant's source of title,
- f. any security interest upon the vehicle, and

- g. such other information as the Tax Commission may require.

2. The application for a certificate of title for a vehicle which is within the last seven (7) model years shall require a declaration as to whether the vehicle has been damaged by collision or other occurrence and whether the vehicle has been recovered from theft and the extent of the damage to the vehicle. The declaration shall be made by the owner of a vehicle if:

- a. the vehicle has been damaged or stolen,
- b. the owner did or did not receive any payment for the loss from an insurer, or
- c. the vehicle is titled or registered in a state that does not classify the vehicle or brand the title because of damage to or loss of the vehicle similar to the classifications or brands utilized by this state.

The declaration shall be based upon the best information and knowledge of the owner and shall be in addition to the requirements specified in paragraph 1 of this subsection. The Tax Commission shall not issue a certificate of title for a vehicle which is subject to the provisions of this paragraph without the required declaration, completed and signed by the owner of the vehicle. Upon receipt of an application without the properly completed declaration, the Tax Commission shall return the application to the applicant with notice that the title may not be issued without the required declaration. Nothing in this paragraph shall prohibit the Tax Commission from recognizing the type of or brand on a title or other ownership document issued by another state or the inspection conducted in another state and issuing the appropriate certificate of title for the vehicle.

3. The certificate of title shall have the following security features:

- a. intaglio printing or security thread, with or without watermark,
- b. latent images,
- c. fluorescent inks,
- d. micro print,
- e. void background, and
- f. color coding.

4. Each title issued pursuant to the provisions of the Oklahoma Vehicle License and Registration Act shall be color coded as determined by the Tax Commission.

5. a. The certificate of title shall be of such size and design and color as the Tax Commission may direct pursuant to the provisions of this section. The title shall be on colored paper or other material as designated by the Tax Commission and be of such intensity or hue as will allow easy identification as to whether the title is an original title, a salvage title, a rebuilt title, remanufactured title, or a junked title. The type of title shall be identified on the front of the certificate of title. The original title, rebuilt title, remanufactured title, or classic title shall be identified by the word "Original", "Rebuilt", "Remanufactured" or "Classic" printed in the upper right quadrant of the certificate of title, in the space which is currently captioned "type of title".

b. The original title shall be part of a form set designed with the following attributes unless modified by the Tax Commission:

(1) all variable information shall be entered on the face of the form set,

- (2) each form set shall bear a unique number which shall appear on each page of the form set, and
- (3) one page of the form set shall include:
 - (a) Title,
 - (b) Registration Certificate,
 - (c) Seller's Notice to Tax Commission of Transfer of Vehicle Title, and
 - (d) Temporary Vehicle License Plate.

D. 1. To obtain an original certificate of title for a vehicle that is being registered for the first time in this state which has not been previously registered in any other state, the applicant shall be required to deliver, as evidence of ownership, a manufacturer's certificate of origin properly assigned by the manufacturer, distributor, or dealer licensed in this or any other state shown thereon to be the last transferee to the applicant upon a form to be prescribed and approved by the Tax Commission. A manufacturer's certificate of origin shall contain:

- a. the manufacturer's serial or other identification number,
- b. date on which first sold by the manufacturer to the dealer,
- c. any distinguishing marks including model and the year same was made,
- d. a statement of any security interests upon the vehicle, and
- e. such other information as the Tax Commission may require.

2. The manufacturer's certificate of origin shall have the following security features:

- a. intaglio printing or security thread, with or without watermark,
- b. latent images,

- c. fluorescent inks,
- d. micro print, and
- e. void background.

E. In the absence of a dealer's or manufacturer's number, the Tax Commission may assign such identifying number to the vehicle, which shall be permanently stamped, burned or pressed or attached into the vehicle, and a certificate of title shall be delivered to the applicant upon payment of all fees and taxes, and the remaining copies shall be permanently filed and indexed by the Tax Commission. The Tax Commission shall assign an identifying number to any rebuilt vehicle if the vehicle identification number displayed on the rebuilt vehicle does not accurately describe the vehicle as rebuilt. The motor license agent, at the time of inspection of the rebuilt vehicle pursuant to Section 1111 of this title, shall identify the make, model, and year for the body to accurately describe the rebuilt vehicle. At the time of the inspection, an appropriate identifying number shall be permanently stamped, burned, pressed, or attached on the rebuilt vehicle. The assigned identifying number shall be recorded on the certificate of title for the rebuilt vehicle. The dealer's or manufacturer's vehicle identification number on the rebuilt vehicle shall be preserved in the computer files of the Tax Commission for at least five (5) years.

F. When registering for the first time in this state a vehicle which was not originally manufactured for sale in the United States, to obtain a certificate of title, the Tax Commission shall require the applicant to deliver:

1. As evidence of ownership, if the vehicle has not previously been titled in the United States, the documents constituting valid proof of ownership in the country in which the vehicle was originally purchased, together with a notarized translation of any such documents; and

2. As evidence of compliance with federal law, copies of the bond release letters for the vehicle issued by the United States Environmental Protection Agency and the United States Department of Transportation, together with a receipt issued by the Internal Revenue Service indicating that the applicable federal gas guzzler tax has been paid.

The Tax Commission shall not issue a certificate of title for a vehicle which is subject to the provisions of this paragraph without the required documentation from agencies of the United States and evidence of ownership. Upon receipt of an application without the required documentation, the Tax Commission shall return the application to the applicant with notice that the certificate of title may not be issued without the required documentation. Nothing in this paragraph shall prohibit the Tax Commission from issuing certificates of title for antique or classic vehicles not driven upon the public streets, roads, or highways.

G. When registering in this state a vehicle which was titled in another state and which title contains the name of a secured party on the face of the other state certificate of title, or such state certificate is being held by the secured party in that state or any other state, the Tax Commission or the motor license agent shall complete a lien entry form as prescribed by the Tax Commission. The owner of such vehicle shall file an affidavit with the Tax Commission or the motor license agent stating that title to the vehicle is being held by a secured party has not been issued pursuant to the laws of the state where titled, and that there is an existing lien or encumbrance on the vehicle. The current name and address of the secured party or lienholder shall also be stated in the affidavit. The form of the affidavit shall be prescribed by the Tax Commission and contain any other information deemed necessary by the Tax Commission. A statement of the lien or encumbrance shall be included on the Oklahoma certificate of title and the lien or

encumbrance shall be deemed continuously perfected as though it had been perfected pursuant to Section 1110 of this title. For completing the lien entry form and recording the security interest on the certificate of title, the Tax Commission or the motor license agent shall collect a fee of Three Dollars (\$3.00) which shall be in addition to other fees provided by the Oklahoma Vehicle License and Registration Act. The fee, if collected by the motor license agent pursuant to this subsection, shall be retained by the motor license agent.

H. The charge for each certificate of title issued, except for junked titles as defined in paragraph 4 of subsection B of this section, shall be Eleven Dollars (\$11.00), which charge shall be in addition to any other fees or taxes imposed by law for such vehicle. One Dollar (\$1.00) of each such charge shall be deposited in the Oklahoma Tax Commission Reimbursement Fund. However, the charge shall not apply to any vehicle which is to be registered in this state pursuant to the provisions of Section 1120 or 1133 of this title and which was registered in another state at least sixty (60) days prior to the time it is required to be registered in this state.

I. The vehicle identification number of a junked vehicle shall be preserved in the computer files of the Tax Commission for a period of not less than five (5) years. The charge of junked titles as defined in paragraph 4 of subsection B of this section shall be Four Dollars (\$4.00). The fee remitted to the Tax Commission shall be deposited in the Oklahoma Tax Commission Reimbursement Fund.

J. If a vehicle is sold to a resident of another state, destroyed, dismantled, or ceases to be used as a vehicle, the owner shall immediately notify the Tax Commission. Absent evidence to the contrary, failure to notify the Tax Commission shall be prima facie evidence that the vehicle has been in continuous operation in this state.

K. If a vehicle is stolen, the owner shall immediately notify the appropriate law enforcement agency. Immediately after receiving such notification, the law enforcement agency shall notify the Tax Commission.

L. No title for an out-of-state vehicle, except any commercial truck or truck-tractor registered pursuant to Section 1120 of this title which is engaged in interstate commerce or any trailer or semitrailer registered pursuant to Section 1133 of this title which is engaged in interstate commerce, shall be issued without an inspection of such vehicle and payment of a fee of Four Dollars (\$4.00) for such inspection; provided, the Tax Commission may enter into reciprocal agreements with other states for such inspections to be performed at locations outside the boundaries of this state for vehicles which:

1. Are offered for sale at auction;
2. Have been solely used as vehicles for rent under the ownership of a licensed motor vehicle dealer or a person engaged in the business of renting motor vehicles; or
3. Have not been registered in this or any other state for more than one (1) year.

The inspection shall include a comparison of the vehicle identification number on the vehicle with the number recorded on the ownership records and the recording of the actual odometer reading on the vehicle. The Four Dollar (\$4.00) fee shall be collected by the motor license agent or Commission when the title is issued. The motor license agent shall retain Two Dollars (\$2.00). The remaining Two Dollars (\$2.00) shall be deposited in the Oklahoma Tax Commission Reimbursement Fund.

The Tax Commission may allow the inspection to be performed at a location out-of-state by another state's department of motor vehicles or state police.

M. No title for any out-of-state vehicle offered for sale at salvage pools, salvage disposal sales, or an auction, or by a dealer or a licensed automotive dismantler and parts recycler, shall be issued without an inspection to compare the vehicle identification number on the vehicle with the number recorded on the ownership record and to record the actual odometer reading on the vehicle. Upon request of the seller, person or entity conducting an auction, dealer or licensed dismantler, the inspection shall be conducted at the location or place of business of the sale, auction, dealer, or the dismantler. The inspection shall be conducted by any motor license agent or a duly authorized employee thereof; provided, the Tax Commission may enter into reciprocal agreements with other states for such inspections to be performed at locations outside the boundaries of this state for vehicles which:

1. Are offered for sale at auction;
2. Have been solely used as vehicles for rent under the ownership of a licensed motor vehicle dealer or a person engaged in the business of renting motor vehicles; or
3. Have not been registered in this or any other state for more than one (1) year.

The inspection shall be certified upon forms prescribed by the Tax Commission. The name and other identification of the authorized person conducting the inspection shall be legibly printed or typed on the form. Prior to any inspection by any employee of a motor license agent, the motor license agent shall notify the Tax Commission of the name and any other identification information requested by the Tax Commission of the authorized person. A signature specimen of the authorized person shall be submitted to the Tax Commission by the employing motor license agent. If the authorization to inspect vehicles is withdrawn or the employer-employee relationship is terminated, the motor license agent, immediately, shall notify the Tax Commission and return any

remaining inspection forms to the Tax Commission. The fee for the inspection shall be Four Dollars (\$4.00). The motor license agent shall retain Three Dollars (\$3.00) of the fee. Fees received by a motor license agent or an authorized employee thereof shall be handled and accounted for in the manner as prescribed by law for any other fees paid to or received by a motor license agent. Out-of-state vehicles brought into this state by a person licensed in another state to sell new or used vehicles to be sold within this state at a motor vehicle auction which is limited to dealer to dealer transactions shall not be required to be inspected, unless the vehicle is purchased by an Oklahoma dealer. Any person licensed in another state to sell new or used motor vehicles, who offers a motor vehicle for sale within this state at a motor vehicle auction which is limited to dealer to dealer transactions, shall not be within the definition of "owner" in Section 1102 of this title, for purposes of Section 1101 et seq. of this title.

N. An out-of-state vehicle which has been rebuilt shall be inspected pursuant to the provisions of Section 1111 of this title. The Tax Commission shall train motor license agents in interpreting vehicle identification numbers to assure that it accurately describes the vehicle and to detect rollback or alteration of the odometer. Failure of a motor license agent to inspect the vehicle and make the required notations shall be a misdemeanor punishable by a fine of not more than One Thousand Dollars (\$1,000.00) for the first offense and Five Thousand Dollars (\$5,000.00) for the second offense or subsequent offense, or by imprisonment in the county jail for not more than six (6) months, or by both such fine and imprisonment.

O. The ownership of any vehicle which has been declared a total loss because of theft shall be transferred to the insurer by a salvage title. Upon recovery of the vehicle from theft, the ownership shall be transferred by an original title, salvage title,

or junked title, as may be appropriate based upon an estimate of the amount of loss submitted by the insurer.

P. The owner of any vehicle which is incapable of operation or use on the public roads and has no resale value, except as parts, scrap or junk, may deliver the certificate of title to the vehicle to the Tax Commission for cancellation. Upon verification that any perfected lien against the vehicle has been released, the certificate of title shall be canceled without any fee, charge, or cost required from the owner. The vehicle identification numbers on the certificates of title shall be preserved in the computer files of the Tax Commission for at least five (5) years from the date of cancellation of the certificate of title. The Tax Commission shall prescribe and provide an affidavit form to be completed by the owner of any vehicle for which the certificate of title is canceled. No title or registration shall subsequently be issued for a vehicle for which the certificate of title has been surrendered pursuant to this subsection. The Tax Commission shall prescribe a form for the transfer of ownership of a vehicle for which the certificate of title has been canceled.

Q. The owner of a vehicle which is not within the last ten (10) model years, not roadworthy and not capable of repair for operation or use on the roads and highways shall transfer the vehicle only upon a certificate of ownership prescribed by the Tax Commission, if the certificate of title to the vehicle is lost, has been canceled, or otherwise not available. The prescribed ownership form shall include the names and addresses of the buyer and seller, the driver license number or social security number of the seller, the make and model of the vehicle, and the public vehicle identification number. If there is no public vehicle identification number, the vehicle shall be inspected by a law enforcement officer to verify the absence of the number on the vehicle and the prescribed ownership

form shall include a signed statement, by such officer, verifying the absence of the number.

The certificate of ownership shall be completed in triplicate. The buyer and seller shall each retain a copy. Within thirty (30) days of the transaction, the seller shall submit one copy to the Tax Commission or a motor license agent accompanied with a fee of Four Dollars (\$4.00). One Dollar (\$1.00) shall be retained by the motor license agent and Three Dollars (\$3.00) shall be deposited in the Oklahoma Tax Commission Reimbursement Fund in the State Treasury.

Upon receipt of the certificate, the Tax Commission shall verify that any perfected lien upon the vehicle has been released. If the lien is not released, the Tax Commission shall mail notice of the transfer to the lienholder at the lienholder's last-known address. If a certificate of title has been issued, it shall be canceled and the vehicle identification number shall be preserved in the computer of the Tax Commission for at least five (5) years. The buyer of the vehicle may not be sued and shall not be liable for monetary damages to the lienholder, however, the vehicle shall be subject to a valid repossession by a lienholder unless the lien has been released as provided in Section 1110 of this title.

R. The Tax Commission shall notify the chief administrative officer of the agency or department responsible for issuing motor vehicle certificates of title in each state in the United States of the types of motor vehicle certificate of title effective in Oklahoma on and after January 1, 1989.

S. When registering for the first time in this state a remanufactured vehicle which has not been registered in any other state since its remanufacture, before issuing a certificate of title, the Tax Commission shall require the applicant to deliver a statement of origin from the remanufacturer.

SECTION 4. NEW LAW A new section of law to be codified in the Oklahoma Statutes as Section 1105.5 of Title 47, unless there is created a duplication in numbering, reads as follows:

A. Effective January 1, 2003, the issuance, use and disposition of a vehicle license plate, registration decal, original title, registration certificate, Seller's Notice to the Oklahoma Tax Commission of the Transfer of Vehicle Title and temporary license plate shall be in accordance with this section, except as otherwise provided for by law. All vehicle registrations, plates and decals issued prior to January 1, 2003, shall remain valid until the expiration thereof, except those categorized as permanent may be canceled and reissued in accordance with rules of the Tax Commission.

B. 1. A vehicle license plate mounted upon a vehicle at the time of renewal of registration may be retained on the vehicle and the license plate number shall be assigned to the vehicle owner as provided for in Section 1113 of Title 47 of the Oklahoma Statutes or as otherwise provided by law.

2. Upon sale or other transfer of vehicle title, the seller or transferor shall physically remove and retain the license plate.

3. If within thirty (30) days, the person retaining the license plate acquires another vehicle of the same type for which the license plate was issued, the person may request to use the retained license plate for registration of the newly acquired vehicle. Otherwise, the person must immediately surrender the license plate to the Tax Commission or a motor license agent.

4. No owner of a motor vehicle shall possess at any time more than one license plate for any vehicle.

5. A vehicle license plate issued by the state shall:

- a. remain the property of the state at all times,
- b. be issued by the state only to natural persons or to other legal entities,

- c. be displayed only upon the vehicle of the registered owner,
- d. not be transferred by the owner to any other vehicle unless approved by the Tax Commission,
- e. not be transferred by the owner to another person or entity,
- f. be immediately reported by the owner to the Tax Commission for cancellation if lost, missing, mutilated, destroyed or otherwise rendered unusable,
- g. be immediately surrendered to the Tax Commission or a motor license agent if the registered vehicle owner dies or the registered legal entity becomes defunct for any reason, and
- h. not be reassigned by the state to another vehicle owner unless the vehicle license plate has been physically surrendered to the state and the prior owner's registration information has been archived and is no longer indexed to the vehicle license plate number.

6. Upon cancellation of a vehicle license plate number for any reason, notice thereof may be given by the Tax Commission to the Department of Public Safety, law enforcement officers, motor license agents, other state jurisdictions and others as needed to enforce the Oklahoma Vehicle License and Registration Act.

7. It shall be the duty of any person having possession of any license plate reportedly canceled by the Tax Commission to immediately surrender such plate to the Tax Commission or motor license agent.

8. Any vehicle license plate reportedly canceled by the Tax Commission which is mounted upon a motor vehicle located upon any public street, highway or parking lot where the public is invited, may be immediately removed without notice by any law enforcement

officer or authorized employee of the Tax Commission or Department of Public Safety for surrender to the Tax Commission. Such officers, employees and entities shall not be civilly liable for performing this duty in good faith.

C. 1. The Tax Commission shall design vehicle registration decals, which shall have the following attributes. Decals shall:

- a. be approximately three (3) inches by four (4) inches in size or approximately three (3) to four (4) inches in diameter,
- b. be reflective and bear a unique identification number,
- c. be designed to readily distinguish the type of vehicle registered from other types of vehicles, such as commercial, taxi, bus, tax-exempt, farm or other type, and to distinguish the registration fee category based upon the age or weight of the vehicle as provided for in Section 1132 et seq. of Title 47 of the Oklahoma Statutes,
- d. be self-adhesive for placement inside the windshield and located in the lower corner of the driver side, if issued for a motor vehicle having a permanent windshield,
- e. be self-adhesive for all other vehicles, in such size, design and placement as shall be prescribed by the Tax Commission,
- f. be designed to prevent removal without destroying the decal, and
- g. be designed to clearly show the month and year of expiration.

2. The appropriate type of decal shall be issued for the type of vehicle registered upon receipt of the fees therefor as otherwise provided for by law. It shall be unlawful for any person to operate a motor vehicle or other vehicle subject to the registration laws of

this state without a valid vehicle registration decal issued for such vehicle permanently affixed thereto as provided for by law.

3. Except for decals issued for rental vehicles pursuant to Section 1120.1 of Title 47 of the Oklahoma Statutes or as may be otherwise excepted by the Tax Commission, all decals permanently attached to a vehicle shall be transferable with the vehicle to a new owner of the vehicle upon registration as credit for taxes and prior registration fees paid through the date of expiration. All other fees provided for at the time of registration shall be collected as otherwise provided for by law.

4. Vehicle registration decals shall be issued with simple instructions as to where they must be permanently attached to the vehicle and how to apply them.

5. The taxes and fees paid for a vehicle registration shall not be refundable unless otherwise provided for by law. In the event a windshield bearing a valid decal is replaced for any reason, the dealer replacing the windshield shall destroy the decal and note the decal number upon the invoice or receipt as destroyed. The invoice or receipt may be accepted by the Tax Commission as evidence to provide credit for a replacement decal for the remaining registration period. It shall be a misdemeanor for any person to make a false endorsement upon an invoice or receipt or to use such false endorsement for the purpose of obtaining a replacement vehicle registration decal, punishable by a fine of not more than Five Hundred Dollars (\$500.00) or by imprisonment for not more than thirty (30) days, or by both such fine and imprisonment.

SECTION 5. AMENDATORY 47 O.S. 2001, Section 1107, is amended to read as follows:

Section 1107. A. In the event of the sale or transfer of the ownership of a vehicle for which a certificate of title has been issued as provided by Section 1105 of this title, the holder of such certificate shall endorse on the ~~back of~~ same a complete assignment

thereof with warranty of title in form printed thereon with a statement of all liens or encumbrances on the vehicle, sworn to before a notary public or some other person authorized by law to take acknowledgments, and deliver same to the purchaser or transferee at the time of delivery to the purchaser or transferee of the vehicle. The seller ~~may~~ shall notify the Oklahoma Tax Commission of the sale, transfer or assignment of the owner's title or interest in the vehicle giving the date thereof, the name and address of the owner and of the transferee, and the description of the vehicle on forms provided by the Tax Commission and signed by both parties, or on forms prescribed by Section 4 of this act. Upon receipt of such notification, the Commission shall appropriately file and index the sale, transfer or assignment. The purchaser or transferee, unless such person is a bona fide used motor vehicle dealer licensed by this state, or a charitable organization shall, within thirty (30) days from the time of delivery to the purchaser or transferee of the vehicle, present the assigned certificate of title and the insurance security verification to the vehicle to the ~~Oklahoma~~ Tax Commission, or one of its motor license agents, accompanied by a fee of Eleven Dollars (\$11.00), together with any motor vehicle excise tax or license fee that may be due, whereupon a new certificate of title, shall be issued to the assignee. One Dollar (\$1.00) of each fee shall be deposited in the Oklahoma Tax Commission Reimbursement Fund. Any charitable organization utilizing the exemption authorized by this subsection shall receive training as prescribed by the Oklahoma Used Motor Vehicle and Parts Commission.

B. A licensed dealer or charitable organization shall, on selling or otherwise disposing of a vehicle, execute and deliver to the purchaser thereof the certificate of title properly and completely reassigned. Thereupon, the purchaser of the vehicle shall present the reassigned certificate to the Commission, or a

motor license agent, accompanied by a fee of Eleven Dollars (\$11.00), and any motor vehicle excise tax or license fee that may be due, whereupon a new certificate of title will be issued to the purchaser. One Dollar (\$1.00) of each fee shall be deposited in the Oklahoma Tax Commission Reimbursement Fund. The certificate, when so assigned and returned to the Commission, together with any subsequent assignment or reissue thereof, shall be appropriately filed and indexed so that at all times it will be possible to trace title to the vehicle designated therein. Provided, when the ownership of any motor vehicle shall pass by operation of law, the person owning the vehicle may, upon furnishing satisfactory proof to the Commission of ownership, procure a title to the motor vehicle, regardless of whether a certificate of title has ever been issued. The dealer shall execute and deliver to the purchaser bills of sale on forms prescribed by the Commission for all new vehicles sold by the dealer. On presentation of a bill of sale executed on forms prescribed by the Commission, by a manufacturer or dealer for a new vehicle sold in this state, accompanied by remittance in the sum of Eleven Dollars (\$11.00), together with any motor vehicle excise tax or license fee that may be due, a certificate of title shall be issued in accordance with the provisions of the Oklahoma Vehicle License and Registration Act. One Dollar (\$1.00) of each fee shall be deposited in the Oklahoma Tax Commission Reimbursement Fund. For purposes of this subsection, "charitable organization" shall mean any organization which is exempt from taxation pursuant to the provisions of the Internal Revenue Code, 26 U.S.C., Section 501(c)(3) and which is registered as a charitable organization with the Oklahoma Secretary of State and the Oklahoma Attorney General's office.

C. Any person violating the provisions of this section shall be guilty of a misdemeanor and upon the first conviction thereof shall be punished by a fine not to exceed Five Hundred Dollars (\$500.00),

with impoundment of the vehicle until all taxes and fees are paid. A second or subsequent conviction shall be ~~punished~~ punishable by a fine not to exceed One Thousand Dollars (\$1,000.00), with impoundment of the vehicle until all taxes and fees are paid. If a vehicle is impounded pursuant to the provisions of this section, the vehicle shall not be released to the owner until the owner provides proof of security or an affidavit that the vehicle will not be used on public highways or public streets, as required pursuant to Section 7-600 et seq. of this title. Each vehicle involved in a violation of this section shall be considered a separate offense.

SECTION 6. AMENDATORY 47 O.S. 2001, Section 1110, is amended to read as follows:

Section 1110. A. 1. Except for a security interest in vehicles held by a dealer for sale or lease, and a vehicle being registered in this state which was previously registered in another state and which title contains the name of a secured party on the face of the other state certificate or title, a security interest in a vehicle as to which a certificate of title may be properly issued by the Oklahoma Tax Commission shall be perfected only when a lien entry form, and the existing certificate of title, if any, or application for a certificate of title and manufacturer's certificate of origin containing the name and address of the secured party and the date of the security agreement and the required fee are delivered to the Tax Commission or to a motor license agent. As used in this section, the term "dealer" shall be defined as provided in Section 1-112 of this title and, except where such definition is inconsistent with the provisions of paragraph 3 of subsection B of this section, the term "security interest" shall be defined as provided in paragraph (37) of Section 1-201 of Title 12A of the Oklahoma Statutes. When a vehicle title is presented to a motor license agent for transferring or registering and the documents reflect a lien holder, the motor license agent shall perfect the

lien pursuant to subsection G of Section 1105 of this title. For the purposes of this section, the term "vehicle" shall not include special mobilized machinery, machinery used in highway construction or road material construction and rubber-tired road construction vehicles including rubber-tired cranes. The filing and duration of perfection of a security interest, pursuant to the provisions of Title 12A of the Oklahoma Statutes, including, but not limited to, Section 1-9-311 of Title 12A of the Oklahoma Statutes, shall not be applicable to perfection of security interests in vehicles as to which a certificate of title may be properly issued by the Tax Commission, except as to vehicles held by a dealer for sale or lease and except as provided in subsection D of this section. In all other respects Title 12A of the Oklahoma Statutes shall be applicable to such security interests in vehicles as to which a certificate of title may be properly issued by the Tax Commission.

2. Whenever a person creates a security interest in a vehicle, the person shall surrender to the secured party the certificate of title or the signed application for a new certificate of title, on the form prescribed by the Tax Commission, and the manufacturer's certificate of origin. The secured party shall deliver the lien entry form and the required lien filing fee within twenty-five (25) days as provided hereafter with certificate of title or the application for certificate of title and the manufacturer's certificate of origin to the Tax Commission or to a motor license agent. If the lien entry form, the lien filing fee and the certificate of title or application for certificate of title and the manufacturer's certificate of origin are delivered to the Tax Commission or to a motor license agent within twenty-five (25) days after the date of the lien entry form, perfection of the security interest shall begin from the date of the execution of the lien entry form, but otherwise, perfection of the security interest shall

begin from the date of the delivery to the Tax Commission or to a motor license agent.

3. a. For each security interest recorded on a certificate of title, or manufacturer's certificate of origin, such person shall pay a fee of Ten Dollars (\$10.00), which shall be in addition to other fees provided for in the Oklahoma Vehicle License and Registration Act. Upon the receipt of the lien entry form and the required fees with either the certificate of title or an application for certificate of title and manufacturer's certificate of origin, a motor license agent shall, by placement of a clearly distinguishing mark, record the date and number shown in a conspicuous place, on each of these instruments. Of the ten-dollar fee, the motor license agent shall retain Two Dollars (\$2.00) for recording the security interest lien.
- b. It shall be unlawful for any person to solicit, accept or receive any gratuity or compensation for acting as a messenger and for acting as the agent or representative of another person in applying for the recording of a security interest or for the registration of a motor vehicle and obtaining the license plates or for the issuance of a certificate of title therefor unless the Tax Commission has appointed and approved the person to perform such acts; and before acting as a messenger, any such person shall furnish to the Tax Commission a surety bond in such amount as the Tax Commission shall determine appropriate.

4. The certificate of title or the application for certificate of title and manufacturer's certificate of origin with the record of

the date of receipt clearly marked thereon shall be returned to the debtor together with a notice that the debtor is required to register and pay all additional fees and taxes due within thirty (30) days from the date of purchase of the vehicle.

5. Any person creating a security interest in a vehicle that has been previously registered in the debtor's name and on which all taxes due the state have been paid shall surrender the certificate of ownership to the secured party. The secured party shall have the duty to record the security interest as provided in this section and shall, at the same time, obtain a new certificate of title which shall show the secured interest on the face of the certificate of title.

6. The lien entry form with the date and assigned number thereof clearly marked thereon shall be returned to the secured party. If the lien entry form is received and authenticated, as herein provided, by a motor license agent, the agent shall make a report thereof to the Tax Commission upon the forms and in the manner as may be prescribed by the Tax Commission.

7. The Tax Commission shall have the duty to record the lien upon the face of the certificate of title issued at the time of registering and paying all fees and taxes due on the vehicle.

B. 1. A secured party shall, within seven (7) business days after the satisfaction of the security interest, furnish directly or by mail a release of a security interest to the Tax Commission and mail a copy thereof to the last-known address of the debtor. If the security interest has been satisfied by payment from a licensed used motor vehicle dealer to whom the motor vehicle has been transferred, the secured party shall also, within seven (7) business days after such satisfaction, mail an additional copy of the release to the dealer. If the secured party fails to furnish the release as required, the secured party shall be liable to the debtor for a

penalty of One Hundred Dollars (\$100.00) and, in addition, any loss caused to the debtor by such failure.

2. Upon release of a security interest the owner may obtain a new certificate of title omitting reference to the security interest, by submitting to the Tax Commission or to a motor license agent:

- a. a release signed by the secured party, an application for new certificate of title and the proper fees, or
- b. by submitting to the Tax Commission or the motor license agent an affidavit, supported by such documentation as the Tax Commission may require, by the owner on a form prescribed by the Tax Commission stating that the security interest has been satisfied and stating the reasons why a release cannot be obtained, an application for a new certificate of title and the proper fees.

Upon receiving such affidavit that the security interest has been satisfied, the Tax Commission shall issue a new certificate of title eliminating the satisfied security interest and the name and address of the secured parties who have been paid and satisfied. The Tax Commission shall accept a release of a security interest in any form that identifies the debtor, the secured party, and the vehicle, and contains the signature of the secured party. The Tax Commission shall not require any particular form for the release of a security interest.

The words "security interest" when used in the Oklahoma Vehicle License and Registration Act do not include liens dependent upon possession.

3. In the event of the sale or transfer of the ownership of a vehicle, the purchaser may make application to the Tax Commission or a motor license agent for the release of any security interest resulting from liens or encumbrances for fees or taxes or for any

reason other than in connection with purchase or financing of the vehicle. If such application is approved, the Tax Commission shall issue a new certificate of title eliminating the security interest. Any amounts still owed by the seller or transferor shall remain the obligation of the seller or transferor and the Tax Commission is hereby authorized to take actions as authorized by law for the collection of such amounts. The Tax Commission shall promulgate rules to implement the provisions of this paragraph. The provisions of this paragraph shall only apply to security interests perfected on or after July 1, 2003.

C. The Tax Commission shall file and index certificates of title so that at all times it will be possible to trace a certificate of title to the vehicle designated therein, identify the lien entry form, and the names and addresses of secured parties, or their assignees, so that all or any part of such information may be made readily available to those who make legitimate inquiry of the Tax Commission as to the existence or nonexistence of security interest in the vehicle.

D. 1. Any security interest in a vehicle properly perfected prior to July 1, 1979, may be continued as to its effectiveness or duration as provided by Sections 1-9-501 and 1-9-515 of Title 12A of the Oklahoma Statutes, or may be terminated, assigned or released as provided by Sections 1-9-512, 1-9-513 and 1-9-514 of Title 12A of the Oklahoma Statutes, as fully as if this section had not been enacted, or, at the option of the secured party, may also be perfected under this section, and, if so perfected, the time of perfection under this section shall be the date the security interest was originally perfected under the prior law.

2. Upon request of the secured party, the debtor or any other holder of the certificate of title shall surrender the certificate of title to the secured party and shall do such other acts as may be required to perfect the security interest under this section.

E. ~~The priority of a valid security interest in a manufactured home, including without limitation a mobile home or sectional home, perfected pursuant to this section, shall not be affected by reason of the manufactured home becoming a fixture or otherwise being permanently attached to real property after the date of perfection of the security interest~~ If a manufactured home is permanently affixed to real estate, the original document of title may be surrendered to the Tax Commission for cancellation. The legal description or the appropriate tract or parcel number of the real estate must be given to the Tax Commission when the document of title is surrendered. The Tax Commission may require the filing of other information. The Tax Commission may not cancel a document of title if a lien has been registered or recorded. The Tax Commission shall notify the owner and lienholder that the title and a description of the lien have been surrendered to the Tax Commission and that the Tax Commission may not cancel the title until the lien is released. Permanent attachment to real estate does not affect the validity of a lien recorded or registered with the Tax Commission before the manufactured home is permanently attached. The rights of a prior lienholder pursuant to a security agreement or the provisions of a credit transaction and the rights of the state pursuant to a tax lien are preserved. The Tax Commission shall issue a certificate of attachment to real estate to the person who surrenders the document of title. The certificate or document must contain the legal description or the appropriate tract or parcel number of the real estate and the identification number of the home and must certify that the original document of title has been canceled. A security interest in a manufactured home perfected pursuant to this section shall have priority over a conflicting interest of a mortgagee or other lien encumbrancer, or the owner of the real property upon which the manufactured home became affixed or otherwise permanently attached. The holder of the security interest

in the manufactured home, upon default, may remove the manufactured home from such real property. The holder of the security interest in the manufactured home shall reimburse the owner of the real property who is not the debtor and who has not otherwise agreed to access the real property for the cost of repair of any physical injury to the real property, but shall not be liable for any diminution in value to the real property caused by the removal of the manufactured home, trespass, or any other damages caused by the removal. The debtor shall notify the holder of the security interest in the manufactured home of the street address, if any, and the legal description of the real property upon which the manufactured home is affixed or otherwise permanently attached and shall sign such other documents, including any appropriate mortgage, as may reasonably be requested by the holder of such security interest.

F. In the case of motor vehicles or trailers, notwithstanding any other provision of law, a transaction does not create a sale or security interest merely because it provides that the rental price is permitted or required to be adjusted under the agreement either upward or downward by reference to the amount realized upon sale or other disposition of the motor vehicle or trailer.

SECTION 7. AMENDATORY 47 O.S. 2001, Section 1113, is amended to read as follows:

Section 1113. A. 1. Upon the filing of a registration application and the payment of the fees provided for in the Oklahoma Vehicle License and Registration Act, the Oklahoma Tax Commission shall assign to the vehicle described in the application a distinctive number, and issue to the owner of the vehicle a certificate of registration and ~~one license plate or a yearly a~~ vehicle registration decal for the year ~~that a license plate is not issued~~. The yearly decal shall have an identification number and ~~the last two numbers of the~~ month and registration year for which it

shall expire. The decal shall be designed in accordance with the provisions of Section 4 of this act. A permanent license plate shall be issued to the owner of the registered vehicle, who shall remove the license plate upon sale of the vehicle as provided for in this section. Except as provided by Section ~~1113A~~ 4 of this ~~title act~~, the license plate shall be affixed to the exterior of the vehicle ~~until a replacement license plate is applied for.~~ The yearly decal will validate ~~the license plate for~~ each registration period ~~other than the year the license plate is issued.~~ The license plate and decal shall be of such size, color, design and numbering as the Tax Commission may direct. ~~However, yearly decals in~~ accordance with the provisions of Section 4 of this act. Decals issued to the owner of a vehicle who has filed an affidavit with the appropriate motor license agent in accordance with Section 7-607 of this title shall be a separate and distinct color from all other decals issued under this section.

2. The license plate shall be securely attached to the rear of the vehicle, except truck-tractor plates which shall be attached to the front of the vehicle. The Tax Commission may, with the concurrence of the Department of Public Safety, by Joint Rule, change and direct the manner, place and location of display of any vehicle license plate when such action is deemed in the public interest. The license plate, decal and all letters and numbers shall be clearly visible at all times. The operation of a vehicle upon which the license plate is covered, overlaid or otherwise screened with any material, whether such material be clear, translucent, tinted or opaque, shall be a violation of this paragraph.

3. Upon payment of the annual registration fee provided in Section 1133 of this title, the Tax Commission or a motor license agent may issue a permanent nonexpiring license plate to an owner of one hundred or more commercial motor vehicles and for vehicles

registered under the provisions of Section 1120 of this title. Upon payment of the annual registration fee, the Tax Commission shall issue a certificate of registration that shall be carried at all times in the vehicle for which it is issued. Provided, if the registrant submits its application through electronic means, such qualified owners of one hundred or more commercial motor vehicles, properly registered pursuant to the provisions of Section 1133 of this title, may elect to receive a permanent certificate of registration that shall be carried at all times in the vehicle for which it is issued.

B. The license plates required under the provisions of this title shall conform to the requirements and specifications listed hereinafter:

1. Each license plate shall have a space for the placement of the yearly decals for each succeeding year of registration after the initial issue;

2. The provisions of the Oklahoma Vehicle License and Registration Act regarding the issuance of yearly decals shall not apply to the issuance of apportioned license plates, including license plates for state vehicles, and exempt plates for governmental entities and fire departments organized pursuant to Section 592 of Title 18 of the Oklahoma Statutes;

3. Within the limits herein prescribed the Tax Commission shall redesign the official vehicle license plates which currently bear the legend "Oklahoma OK" or "Oklahoma is OK!" and substitute therefor the legend "Oklahoma Native America" as further described in this paragraph. Except for personalized license plates and license plates issued for motorcycles and mopeds, the emblem on the state flag of Oklahoma as provided for in Section 91 of Title 25 of the Oklahoma Statutes shall be a part of all license plates issued after December 31, 1988. The Tax Commission may continue to issue license plates with the legend "Oklahoma is OK!" or "Oklahoma OK"

until any inventory of such license plates is depleted but the Tax Commission shall not produce or cause to be produced any additional license plates with these legends. Except for personalized license plates, license plates issued for commercial vehicles, and license plates issued for motorcycles and mopeds, the "Oklahoma Native America" emblem shall be a part of all license plates issued after December 31, 1993. The specifications for lettering style and appearance for the legend "Oklahoma Native America" shall be provided to the Tax Commission by the Oklahoma Tourism and Recreation Department. The license plates shall be issued with the letters and numerals in the colors of green and white. All license plates ~~and decals~~ shall be made with reflectorized material as a background to the letters, numbers and characters impressed thereon. The reflectorized material shall be of such a nature as to provide effective and dependable brightness ~~during the service period for which the~~ a permanent license plate ~~or decal is issued;~~

4. Except as otherwise provided in this subsection, the Tax Commission shall design appropriate official license plates for all state vehicles. Such license plates shall be permanent in nature and designed in such manner as to remain with the vehicle for the duration of the vehicle's life span or until the title is transferred to a nongovernmental owner;

5. Within the limits prescribed in this section, the Tax Commission shall design appropriate official license plates for vehicles of the Oklahoma Highway Patrol. The license plates shall have the legend "Oklahoma OK" and shall contain the letters "OHP" followed by the state seal and the badge number of the Highway Patrol officer to whom the vehicle is assigned. The words "Oklahoma Highway Patrol" shall also be included on such license plates;

6. Within the limits prescribed in this section, the Tax Commission shall design appropriate official license plates for vehicles of the Oklahoma Military Department. Such license plates

shall have the legend "Oklahoma OK" and shall contain the letters "OMD" followed by the state seal and three numbers or letters as designated by the Adjutant General. The words "Oklahoma Military Department" shall also be included on such license plates.

C. Where the applicant has satisfactorily shown that the applicant owns the vehicle sought to be registered but is unable to produce documentary evidence of the ownership, a license plate may be issued upon approval by the Tax Commission. In such instances the reason for not issuing a certificate of title shall be indicated on the receipt given to the applicant. It shall still be the duty of the applicant to immediately take all necessary steps to obtain the Oklahoma certificate of title and it shall be unlawful for the applicant to sell the vehicle until the certificate has been obtained in the applicant's name.

D. The certificate of registration provided for in this section shall be in convenient form, and the certificate of registration, or a certified copy or photostatic copy thereof, duly authenticated by the Tax Commission, shall be carried at all times in or upon ~~commercial~~ vehicles so registered, in such manner as to permit a ready examination thereof upon demand by any peace officer of the state or duly authorized employee of the Department of Public Safety. Any such officer or agent may seize and hold such ~~commercial~~ vehicle when the operator of the same does not have the registration certificate in the operator's possession or when any such officer or agent determines that the registration certificate has been obtained by misrepresentation of any essential or material fact or when any number or identifying information appearing on such certificate has been changed, altered, obliterated or concealed in any way, until the proper registration or identification of such vehicle has been made or produced by the owner thereof.

E. The purchaser of a new or used manufactured home shall, within thirty (30) days of the date of purchase, register the home

with the Tax Commission or a motor license agent pursuant to the provisions of Section 1117 of this title. For a new manufactured home, it shall be the responsibility of the dealer selling the home to place a temporary license plate on the home in the same manner as provided in Section 1128 of this title for other new motor vehicles. For the first year that any manufactured home is registered in this state, the Tax Commission shall issue a metal license plate which shall be affixed to the manufactured home and the metal license plate shall be registered to the owner of the manufactured home, to be displayed on the manufactured home at all times when upon a public roadway. The license plate shall be removed by the owner upon transferring ownership of the manufactured home. The removed plate shall be surrendered to the Tax Commission upon transfer of title of the manufactured home. Manufactured homes previously registered and subject to ad valorem taxation as provided by law shall have ~~the metal license plate~~ a decal affixed at the time ad valorem taxes are paid for such manufactured home; provided, for a manufactured home permanently affixed to a foundation, no decal or license plate shall be required to be affixed and the owner thereof shall be given a receipt upon payment of ad valorem taxes due on the home. ~~The owner of the home shall be required to affix such plate to the home.~~ The Tax Commission shall make sufficient plates and decals available to the various motor license agents of the state in order for an owner of a manufactured home to acquire the plate or decal. A One Dollar (\$1.00) fee shall be charged for issuance of any plate or decal. The fee shall be apportioned each month to the General Revenue Fund of the State Treasury.

F. The ~~manufactured home license plate~~ decal shall be designed so that it is easily visible for purposes of verification by a county assessor ~~that the manufactured home is properly assessed for ad valorem taxation. The plate shall be designed for a yearly decal.~~ In the first year of registration, ~~a~~ the decal shall be

~~issued for placement on the license plate~~ placed inside the window nearest the door of the manufactured home indicating payment of applicable registration fees and excise taxes unless the manufactured home is permanently affixed to a foundation, in which case no decal shall be issued. In the second and all subsequent years for which the manufactured home is subject to ad valorem taxation, an annual decal shall be affixed ~~to the license plate~~ as evidence of payment of ad valorem taxes. The Tax Commission shall issue decals to the various county treasurers of the state in order for a manufactured home owner to obtain such decal each year. Upon presentation of a valid ad valorem tax receipt, the manufactured home owner shall be issued the annual decal.

G. Upon the registration of a manufactured home in this state for the first time or upon discovery of a manufactured home previously registered within this state for which the information required by this subsection is not known, the Tax Commission shall obtain:

1. The name of the owner of the manufactured home;
2. The serial number or identification number of the manufactured home;
3. A legal description or address of the location for the home;
4. The actual retail selling price of the manufactured home excluding Oklahoma taxes;
5. The certificate of title number for the home; and
6. Any other information which the Tax Commission deems to be necessary.

The application for registration shall also include the school district in which the manufactured home is located or is to be located. The information shall be entered into a computer data system which shall be used by the Tax Commission to provide information to county assessors upon request by the assessor. The

assessor may request any information from the system in order to properly assess a manufactured home for ad valorem taxation.

SECTION 8. AMENDATORY 47 O.S. 2001, Section 1114, is amended to read as follows:

Section 1114. In the event of loss, mutilation, or destruction of a license plate ~~or decal~~, the owner of such registered vehicle shall file an affidavit showing such fact and obtain another plate ~~or decal~~. The charge shall be Four Dollars (\$4.00) for each such plate ~~or decal~~.

SECTION 9. AMENDATORY 47 O.S. 2001, Section 1115, is amended to read as follows:

Section 1115. A. Unless provided otherwise by statute, the following vehicles shall be registered annually: manufactured homes, mopeds, motorcycles, ~~vehicles registered with a permanent nonexpiring license plate pursuant to Section 1113 of this title~~, commercial vehicles registered pursuant to the provisions of the International Registration Plan and commercial vehicles registered pursuant to the installment plan provided in subsection H of Section 1133 of this title. The following schedule shall apply for such vehicle purchased in this state or brought into this state by residents of this state:

1. Between January 1 and March 31, the payment of the full annual fee shall be required;
2. Between April 1 and June 30, the payment of three-fourths (3/4) the annual fee shall be required;
3. Between July 1 and September 30, the payment of one-half (1/2) the annual fee shall be required; and
4. Between October 1 and November 30, one-fourth (1/4) the annual fee shall be required.

~~License plates or~~ Vehicle registration decals for each year shall be made available on December 1 of each preceding year for such vehicles. Any person who purchases such vehicle, manufactured

home or motorcycle between December 1 and December 31 of any year shall register it within thirty (30) days from date of purchase and obtain a ~~license plate~~ vehicle registration decal or Manufactured Home License Registration Decal, as appropriate, for the following calendar year upon payment of the full annual fee. Unless provided otherwise by statute, all annual license, registration and other fees for such vehicles shall be due and payable on January 1 of each year and if not paid by February 1 shall be deemed delinquent.

B. 1. All vehicles, other than those required to be registered pursuant to the provisions of subsection A of this section, shall be registered on a staggered system of registration and licensing on a monthly series basis to distribute the work of registering such vehicles as uniformly and expeditiously as practicable throughout the calendar year. After the end of the month following the expiration date, the license and registration fees for the new registration period shall become delinquent.

2. ~~Effective December 1, 2000, all~~ All fleet vehicles registered pursuant to new applications approved pursuant to the provisions of Section 1120 of this title shall be registered on a staggered system monthly basis. ~~The Oklahoma Tax Commission shall notify in writing, prior to the 2001 renewal period, all registrants with established accounts, who will have the option of changing their registration expiration date or remaining with their existing registration expiration date.~~

3. Applicants seeking to establish Oklahoma as the base jurisdiction for registering apportioned fleet vehicles after December 1, 2000, and registrants converting an established account to the staggered registration system shall have a one-time option of registering for a period of not less than four (4) nor greater than fifteen (15) months. Subsequent renewals for these registrants will be for twelve (12) months, expiring on the last day of the month chosen by the registrant under the one-time option as provided

herein. In addition, registrants with multiple fleets may designate a different registration month of expiration for each fleet.

As used in this section, "fleet" shall have the same meaning as set forth in the International Registration Plan.

C. The following penalties shall apply for delinquent registration fees:

1. For fleet vehicles required to be registered pursuant to the provisions of Section 1120 of this title for which a properly completed application for registration has not been received by the Tax Commission by the last day of the month following the registration expiration date, a penalty of thirty percent (30%) of the Oklahoma portion of the annual registration fee, or Two Hundred Dollars (\$200.00), whichever is greater, shall be assessed. The license and registration cards issued by the Tax Commission for each fleet vehicle shall be valid until two (2) months after the registration expiration date;

2. For commercial vehicles registered under the provisions of subsection B of this section, except those vehicles registered pursuant to Section 1133.1 of this title, a penalty shall be assessed after the last day of the month following the registration expiration date. A penalty of twenty-five cents (\$0.25) per day shall be added to the ~~license~~ registration fee of such vehicle and shall accrue for one (1) month. Thereafter, the penalty shall be thirty percent (30%) of the annual registration fee, or Two Hundred Dollars (\$200.00), whichever is greater;

3. For new or used manufactured homes, not registered within thirty (30) days from date of purchase or date such manufactured home was brought into this state, a penalty equal to the registration fee shall be assessed; or

4. Except as provided in subsection H of Section 1133 of this title, for all other vehicles a penalty shall be assessed after the last day of the month following the expiration date. A penalty of

twenty-five cents (\$0.25) per day shall be added to the ~~license~~ registration fee of such vehicle and shall accrue for three (3) months. Thereafter, the penalty shall be Twenty-five Dollars (\$25.00), provided that the penalty shall not exceed the amount equal to the ~~license~~ registration fee of such vehicle.

D. In addition to all other penalties provided in the Oklahoma Vehicle License and Registration Act, ~~Section 1101 et seq. of this title,~~ the following penalties shall be imposed and collected by any Revenue Enforcement Officer of the Tax Commission upon finding any commercial vehicle being operated in violation of the provisions of the Oklahoma Vehicle License and Registration Act.

The penalties shall apply to any commercial vehicle found to be operating in violation of the following provisions:

1. A penalty in the amount of Fifty Dollars (\$50.00) shall be imposed upon any person found to be operating a commercial vehicle sixty (60) days after the end of the month in which the ~~license plate or~~ registration credentials expire without the current year ~~license plate or~~ registration credential displayed;

2. A penalty in the amount of Fifty Dollars (\$50.00) shall be imposed for any person operating a commercial vehicle subject to the provisions of Section 1120 or Section 1133 of this title without the proper display of, or, carrying in such commercial vehicle, the identification credentials issued by the Tax Commission as evidence of payment of the fee or tax as provided in Section 1120 or Section 1133 of this title; and

3. A penalty in the amount of One Hundred Dollars (\$100.00) shall be imposed for any person that fails to register any commercial vehicle subject to the Oklahoma Vehicle License and Registration Act.

E. The Tax Commission shall assess the registration fees and penalties for the year or years a vehicle was not registered. For vehicles not registered for two (2) or more years, the registration

fees and penalties shall be due only for the current year and one (1) previous year. The Tax Commission shall waive road user fees and penalties for failure to register a vehicle, provided road user fees shall not be waived for the current registration year in cases where the vehicle is proven to have been inoperable during the registration period. Proof of inoperability may be by, but is not limited to, submission of parts or repair receipts or such other evidence deemed appropriate by the Tax Commission.

F. In addition to any other penalty prescribed by law, there shall be a penalty in the amount of Twenty Dollars (\$20.00) upon a finding by a revenue enforcement officer that:

1. The registration of a vehicle registered pursuant to Section 1132 of this title is expired and it is sixty (60) or more days after the end of the month of expiration; or

2. The registration fees for a vehicle that is subject to the registration fees pursuant to Section 1132 of this title have not been paid.

G. If a vehicle is donated to a nonprofit charitable organization which organization will transfer such donated vehicle to a current or potential recipient of Temporary Assistance to Needy Families as determined by the Department of Human Services and which vehicle will be used primarily for transportation for job-related or work-related activities by such recipient, the nonprofit charitable organization shall be exempt from paying any current or past due registration fees, excise tax, title or transfer fees, and penalties and interest.

H. If a vehicle is donated to a nonprofit charitable organization other than as provided in subsection G of this section, the person donating the vehicle and the nonprofit charitable organization receiving the donated vehicle shall be exempt from paying any registration fees, excise tax, title or transfer fees, and penalties and interest due from previous years if such fees,

taxes, penalties and interest are more than one (1) year past due and the vehicle is not currently registered. However, after the donation, if the person donating the vehicle, or someone on behalf of such person, purchases the same vehicle back from the nonprofit charitable organization to which the vehicle was donated, such person shall be liable for all current and past-due registration fees, excise tax, title or transfer fees, and penalties and interest on such vehicle.

SECTION 10. AMENDATORY 47 O.S. 2001, Section 1115.1, is amended to read as follows:

Section 1115.1 In addition to the penalties provided in the Oklahoma Vehicle License and Registration Act, after ninety (90) days from the expiration date for annual registration of a vehicle, the Oklahoma Tax Commission, Department of Public Safety, county sheriffs, and all other duly authorized peace officers of this state may seize and take into custody every vehicle owned within this state not bearing or displaying a proper ~~license plate~~ vehicle registration decal as required by the Oklahoma Vehicle License and Registration Act. The vehicle shall not be released to the owner until it is duly registered and the license, registration, or title fee and penalties due are paid in full, proof of security or an affidavit that the vehicle will not be used on public highways or public streets, as required pursuant to Section 7-600 et seq. of this title, is furnished, and the cost of seizure, including the reasonable cost of taking the vehicle into custody and storing the vehicle, have been paid. In the event the owner of any vehicle seized fails to pay such fees and penalties due, together with cost of seizure and storage, and fails to provide proof of security or an affidavit that the vehicle will not be used on public highways or public streets, the ~~Oklahoma~~ Tax Commission or its motor license agents shall proceed to sell the vehicle by posting not less than five notices of sale in five different public places in the county

where the vehicle is located, one of such notices to be posted at the place where the vehicle is stored. A copy of the notice shall also be sent by certified mail, restricted delivery, with return receipt requested, to the last-known address of the registered owner of the vehicle. The vehicle shall be sold at such sale subject to the following terms and conditions:

1. In the event the sale price is equal to, or greater than, the total costs of sale, seizure and the fee and penalty, the purchaser shall be issued a certificate of purchase, license plate, manufactured home registration receipt and decal and registration certificate;

2. In the event the sale price is less than the total costs of sale, seizure, and the fee and penalty, the vehicle shall be sold as junk to the highest bidder, whereupon the bidder shall receive a certificate of purchase; and if the vehicle be dismantled, the record to the junked vehicle shall be canceled. If not dismantled, the vehicle shall be immediately registered; or

3. Any residue remaining unclaimed by the delinquent owner shall be administered in accordance with the Uniform Unclaimed Property Act.

SECTION 11. AMENDATORY 47 O.S. 2001, Section 1116.1, is amended to read as follows:

Section 1116.1 A ~~license plate or~~ decal bearing an expiration date of four (4) months from the date of registration shall be issued for a vehicle registered in the name of a manufacturer or dealer of new motor vehicles. Such ~~license plate or~~ decal shall be issued if the vehicle so registered is exempt from the vehicle excise tax pursuant to the provisions of ~~subsection (k)~~ paragraph 12 of Section 2105 of Title 68 of the Oklahoma Statutes. It shall be unlawful for any person other than a manufacturer, licensed dealer, person contemplating purchase of the vehicle or person holding a valid ~~salesman's~~ salesperson's license issued by the Oklahoma Motor

Vehicle Commission to operate the vehicle after the expiration of the four-month registration period.

SECTION 12. AMENDATORY 47 O.S. 2001, Section 1117, is amended to read as follows:

Section 1117. A. Unless otherwise provided by law, any person purchasing a new or used manufactured home or owning a manufactured home which has not been registered in this state shall register such manufactured home pursuant to the provisions of subsection B of this section and obtain a certificate of title as provided in Section 1105 of this title.

B. The application for registration and certificate of title shall be made to the Oklahoma Tax Commission or to a motor license agent. Such application shall be accompanied by the registration fees required by Section 1135 of this title and any penalties thereon. The application for registration and certificate of title shall include:

1. The name of the owner of the manufactured home;
2. The serial number or identification number of the manufactured home;
3. A legal description or address of the location;
4. The actual retail selling price of the manufactured home excluding Oklahoma taxes; and
5. Any other information which the Tax Commission deems to be necessary.

The application for registration shall also include the school district in which the manufactured home is located or is to be located.

Upon the filing of an application for registration and certificate of title, the payment of fees as required by Section 1133 of this title, the excise tax as provided for in Section 2104.3 of Title 68 of the Oklahoma Statutes and the furnishing of proof satisfactory to the Tax Commission or motor license agent that all

ad valorem taxes have been paid, the Tax Commission or motor license agent shall assign the manufactured home a distinctive number and shall issue to the owner of the manufactured home a certificate of title, a manufactured home registration receipt, Manufactured Home Registration Decal, a vehicle registration decal and an excise tax receipt. The certificate of title number shall be recorded in the computer data system required by Section 1113 of this title in order to collect and store information concerning the subsequent ad valorem tax payments for such manufactured home. The receipts and ~~decal~~ Manufactured Home Registration Decal shall be permanently attached to the title by the Tax Commission or agent. An excise tax receipt so attached shall constitute evidence of payment of the excise tax required by the provisions of Section 2104.3 of Title 68 of the Oklahoma Statutes. Thereafter, the owner of a manufactured home shall be assessed the ad valorem tax as provided in Section 2801 et seq. of Title 68 of the Oklahoma Statutes. The vehicle registration decal shall be affixed inside the window nearest the door of the manufactured home before it is moved upon any public roadway.

C. If an applicant has satisfactorily shown to the Tax Commission or to a motor license agent, that the applicant owns the manufactured home sought to be registered, but is unable to produce the documentary evidence of title, the Tax Commission or motor license agent may issue a manufactured home registration receipt, Manufactured Home Registration Decal, vehicle registration decal and excise tax receipt to the applicant. In such instances, the Tax Commission or motor license agent shall indicate on the receipt given the applicant the reason for not issuing a certificate of title. It shall be the duty of the applicant to immediately take all necessary steps to obtain an Oklahoma certificate of title. It shall be unlawful for such applicant to sell the manufactured home until such title has been obtained by the applicant. After

receiving a certificate of title, the applicant shall then take such title, registration and excise tax receipts and ~~decal~~ Manufactured Home Registration Decal to the Tax Commission or motor license agent for permanent attachment of the receipts to the title.

D. The Department of Public Safety shall issue a permit immediately to the holder of a perfected security interest or licensed representative thereof, if the holder or representative is bonded by the state, to move the manufactured home to a secure location with a repossession affidavit. However, all excise taxes and ad valorem taxes due on such a manufactured home shall be required to be paid within thirty (30) days of the issuance of the permit. A certificate of title for a manufactured home shall not be issued pursuant to a repossession prior to the furnishing of proof satisfactory to the Tax Commission or motor license agent that all ad valorem taxes due have been paid.

E. The Department shall issue a permit immediately to a licensed manufactured home dealer to move a trade-in to a secure location with a trade-in affidavit. However, all excise taxes and ad valorem taxes due on such a manufactured home trade-in shall be required to be paid within thirty (30) days of the issuance of the permit. A certificate of title for a manufactured home trade-in shall not be issued prior to the furnishing of proof satisfactory to the Tax Commission or a motor license agent that all ad valorem taxes due have been paid. A receipt evidencing payment of ad valorem taxes for the current year shall constitute satisfactory proof that all ad valorem taxes due have been paid.

~~F. The Department shall issue a moving permit for a manufactured home which bears a current year license plate and decal.~~

SECTION 13. AMENDATORY 47 O.S. 2001, Section 1120.1, is amended to read as follows:

Section 1120.1 A. The Oklahoma Tax Commission, when in the interest of the State of Oklahoma and its residents, may enter into the International Registration Plan or other compacts or agreements with other states to permit motor vehicle registration and license taxes on any motor vehicle to be used as a rental motor vehicle as defined in the International Registration Plan.

B. The Tax Commission shall require that each rental motor vehicle be assessed the following fees:

1. A registration fee of Fifteen Dollars (\$15.00) shall be assessed at the time of initial registration in lieu of the fee required by paragraph 1 of subsection A of Section 1132 of ~~Title 47 of the Oklahoma Statutes~~ this title; and

2. A fee, of Ten Dollars (\$10.00) to be paid annually in lieu of the fee specified in ~~paragraph 2 of~~ subsection A of Section 1132 of ~~Title 47 of the Oklahoma Statutes of Ten Dollars (\$10.00)~~ this title.

C. Upon registration and payment of the fees required by this section, the owner shall receive a license plate and an annual registration decal which shall be valid until the vehicle is permanently withdrawn from the rental fleet of the owner.

SECTION 14. AMENDATORY 47 O.S. 2001, Section 1127, is amended to read as follows:

Section 1127. A. All vehicles owned by members of the Armed Forces of the United States or their spouses assigned to duty in this state in compliance with official military or naval orders or owned by the spouse, who resides in Oklahoma, of a member of the Armed Forces of the United States serving in a foreign country, which vehicles are not being used in a trade or business or for any commercial purpose, are hereby classified specially for vehicle license and registration purposes in this state. Any such vehicle which is not registered and licensed for the current year in the state of residence or domicile of the ~~serviceman~~ member of the Armed

Forces or of the spouse owning the vehicle must be registered for the current year in Oklahoma as herein provided, except that any such vehicle which has been ~~licensed~~ registered in some other state by such ~~serviceman~~ member or spouse while the ~~serviceman~~ member was stationed in ~~said~~ the other state may be operated in this state for the remainder of the year or period for which it is ~~licensed~~ registered. If such vehicle currently is registered with the Armed Forces of the United States rather than being registered in a state and the ~~serviceman~~ member is transferred to a duty station within this state pursuant to military orders, the ~~serviceman~~ member or spouse owning the vehicle shall not be required to register the vehicle in this state for a period of thirty (30) days after the date the ~~serviceman~~ member is required to report for duty pursuant to ~~said~~ the military.

The ~~serviceman~~ member of the Armed Forces or spouse applying for the registration of any such vehicle shall submit an appropriate statement, to be attached to the vehicle registration application, showing the following: A description of the vehicle owned by applicant; the state and address of the applicant's legal residence or domicile; that applicant or applicant's spouse is on active duty in the Armed Forces of the United States assigned or stationed at a named location in compliance with official military orders. The statement shall be signed by the applicant and certified to by a proper officer of the organization to which applicant is assigned for duty or where the applicant is the spouse of such ~~serviceman~~ member serving in a foreign country the statement shall be signed by ~~said~~ the spouse under the penalties of perjury. The application shall be accompanied by a registration fee of Fifteen Dollars (\$15.00).

B. Any Oklahoma resident who is stationed out of state due to an official assignment of the Armed Forces of the United States or ~~their~~ the spouse of such a resident shall be entitled to register

his or her vehicle or vehicles in this state for the same registration fee afforded members of the Armed Forces of the United States assigned to duty in this state pursuant to subsection A of this section. ~~Such Oklahoma resident or their spouse who is stationed out of state due to an official assignment of the Armed Forces of the United States shall be exempt from the vehicle inspection requirements of Section 1105 of this title; provided, such Oklahoma resident or their spouse who is stationed out of state presents valid documentation acceptable to the Oklahoma Tax Commission evidencing that such inspection has been made by an out of state authority acceptable to the Oklahoma Tax Commission.~~

Any Oklahoma resident who is stationed out of state due to an official assignment of the Armed Forces of the United States may authorize his or her parents to register his or her vehicle or vehicles as provided for in this subsection if the serviceman resident is not able to register the vehicle at the appropriate time.

SECTION 15. AMENDATORY 47 O.S. 2001, Section 1133, is amended to read as follows:

Section 1133. A. The following ~~license~~ registration fees shall be paid annually to the Oklahoma Tax Commission upon the registration of the following vehicles:

For each commercial vehicle over eight thousand (8,000) pounds as defined in Section 1102 of this title, the ~~license~~ registration fee shall be based on the combined laden weight of the vehicle or combination of vehicles. The ~~license~~ registration fees shall be computed and assessed at the following rates:

1. From 8,001 pounds to 15,000 pounds \$ 95.00
2. From 15,001 pounds to 18,000 pounds 120.00
3. From 18,001 pounds to 21,000 pounds 155.00
4. From 21,001 pounds to 24,000 pounds 190.00
5. From 24,001 pounds to 27,000 pounds 225.00

6.	From 27,001 pounds to 30,000 pounds	260.00
7.	From 30,001 pounds to 33,000 pounds	295.00
8.	From 33,001 pounds to 36,000 pounds	325.00
9.	From 36,001 pounds to 39,000 pounds	350.00
10.	From 39,001 pounds to 42,000 pounds	375.00
11.	From 42,001 pounds to 45,000 pounds	400.00
12.	From 45,001 pounds to 48,000 pounds	425.00
13.	From 48,001 pounds to 51,000 pounds	450.00
14.	From 51,001 pounds to 54,000 pounds	475.00
15.	From 54,001 pounds to 57,000 pounds	648.00
16.	From 57,001 pounds to 60,000 pounds	681.00
17.	From 60,001 pounds to 63,000 pounds	713.00
18.	From 63,001 pounds to 66,000 pounds	746.00
19.	From 66,001 pounds to 69,000 pounds	778.00
20.	From 69,001 pounds to 72,000 pounds	817.00
21.	From 72,001 pounds to 73,280 pounds	857.00
22.	From 73,281 pounds to 74,000 pounds	870.00
23.	From 74,001 pounds to 75,000 pounds	883.00
24.	From 75,001 pounds to 76,000 pounds	896.00
25.	From 76,001 pounds to 77,000 pounds	909.00
26.	From 77,001 pounds to 78,000 pounds	922.00
27.	From 78,001 pounds to 79,000 pounds	935.00
28.	From 79,001 pounds to 80,000 pounds	948.00
29.	From 80,001 pounds to 81,000 pounds	961.00
30.	From 81,001 pounds to 82,000 pounds	974.00
31.	From 82,001 pounds to 83,000 pounds	987.00
32.	From 83,001 pounds to 84,000 pounds	1000.00
33.	From 84,001 pounds to 85,000 pounds	1013.00
34.	From 85,001 pounds to 86,000 pounds	1026.00
35.	From 86,001 pounds to 87,000 pounds	1039.00
36.	From 87,001 pounds to 88,000 pounds	1052.00
37.	From 88,001 pounds to 89,000 pounds	1065.00

38. From 89,001 pounds to 90,000 pounds 1078.00

B. After the fifth year's registration in this or any other state, the ~~license~~ registration fee upon any truck registered on a basis of the combined laden weight not in excess of fifteen thousand (15,000) pounds shall be assessed at fifty percent (50%) of the fee computed and assessed for each of the first five (5) years. On the seventh and all subsequent years of registration in this or any other state, on such truck, such ~~license~~ registration fees shall be assessed and computed at fifty percent (50%) of the amount due on the sixth year's registration. In no event shall such annual ~~license~~ registration fee on any truck be less than Ten Dollars (\$10.00) nor shall the annual ~~license~~ registration fee of any truck-tractor be less than Ninety-five Dollars (\$95.00).

C. In addition to the fees required by subsection A of this section, there shall be paid a registration fee of Forty Dollars (\$40.00) upon the first registration in this state after July 1, 1985, and upon the transfer of ownership of any rental trailer, commercial trailer or semitrailer designed to be pulled and usually pulled by a truck or truck-tractor.

Thereafter, a fee of Four Dollars (\$4.00) shall be paid annually for each rental trailer, commercial trailer or semitrailer. The fee of Four Dollars (\$4.00) shall be due and payable on January 1 of each year and shall be the only fee due on any rental trailer, commercial trailer or semitrailer registered under this section.

Upon the payment of the registration fee of Forty Dollars (\$40.00), a nonexpiring registration certificate, registration decal and identification plate shall be issued for each rental trailer, commercial trailer or semitrailer. The nonexpiring identification plate shall remain displayed on the rental trailer, commercial trailer or semitrailer for which the identification plate is issued until such trailer or semitrailer is sold or removed from service.

A receipt shall be issued upon the payment of the annual fee. The receipt shall show the total fee paid for one or more rental trailers, commercial trailers or semitrailers. The receipt shall be retained by the owner of any rental trailer, commercial trailer or semitrailer for a period of three (3) years and shall be subject to audit by the ~~Oklahoma~~ Tax Commission.

Any commercial trailer or semitrailer ~~licensed~~ registered pursuant to this section shall not be permitted to be operated on the highways of this state when such commercial trailer or semitrailer is being operated by a resident of this state, or is being operated by a person operating a vehicle or vehicles domiciled in this state and required by law to be ~~licensed~~ registered in Oklahoma, unless the pulling truck or truck-tractor has been ~~licensed~~ registered pursuant to this section. In no event shall any truck, truck-tractor, trailer, or semitrailer used in the furtherance of any commercial enterprise be permitted to operate on the highways of this state or register at a smaller ~~license~~ registration fee than that prescribed in this section except as provided in this section.

D. For ~~the fiscal year beginning July 1, 1994, and for each fiscal year thereafter,~~ notwithstanding the provisions of Section 1104 of this title, the first Four Hundred Thousand Dollars (\$400,000.00) of all monies collected pursuant to subsections A, B and C of this section shall be paid by the ~~Oklahoma~~ Tax Commission to the State Treasurer ~~of the State of Oklahoma~~ who shall deposit same each fiscal year, or such lesser amount as may accrue each fiscal year, under the provisions of this section to the credit of the General Revenue Fund of the State Treasury. All monies collected in excess of Four Hundred Thousand Dollars (\$400,000.00) each fiscal year shall be apportioned as provided in Section 1104 of this title.

E. If any vehicle is used for a purpose other than that for which it has been registered, the owner of the vehicle shall be required to immediately reregister the vehicle at the appropriate rate. If any vehicle is placed or operated upon any street, road or highway of this state with a laden weight in excess of that for which it is ~~licensed~~ registered, the ~~license~~ registration fee for such increased laden weight shall become due, and the owner of the vehicle shall be required to immediately reregister the vehicle at the increased rate. Provided that, in either event there shall be credited upon the increased ~~license~~ registration fee for such reregistration for any portion of the year or period remaining after the change in use or increase in laden weight shall have occurred a proportionate part of the ~~license~~ registration fees previously paid. If this reregistration is made voluntarily by the owner, the ratable proportion of the credit allowed shall be determined as of the date the reregistration is voluntarily made. If the reregistration is not voluntarily made but occurs as a result of the discovery by any enforcement officer of an improper operation of the vehicle, that shall be considered prima facie evidence that it has been improperly registered for the entire portion of the year covered by the improper registration. Provided further that the ratable credit shall be allowed only on the first reregistration of any vehicle during any calendar year. If, during the calendar year, subsequent changes of ~~license plate~~ registration are desired, the ratable credit shall not be allowed but the owner of the vehicle shall be required to pay the ~~license~~ registration fee due for that portion of the calendar year remaining without benefit of any additional credits. No owner of a motor vehicle shall possess at any time more than one license plate for any vehicle owned by such person. ~~No reregistration shall be made until the current license plate previously issued has been surrendered.~~

Any person who has paid a fee under the terms and provisions of this subsection may at any time within one (1) year after the payment of such fee file with the Tax Commission a claim under oath for refund stating the grounds therefor. However, the Tax Commission shall allow refunds only where the amount of tax paid has been erroneously computed or determined through clerical errors or miscalculations. No refund shall be allowed by the Tax Commission of a tax paid by the person where such payment is made through a mistake as to the legal misinterpretation or construction of the provisions of this section. Any refunds made by the Tax Commission pursuant to this subsection shall be made out of any monies collected pursuant to this subsection and which have not been apportioned.

F. The annual ~~license~~ registration fee required by this section is intended to cover only the motor vehicle for which it is issued. The Tax Commission upon application, when a ~~licensed~~ registered truck-tractor has been destroyed by fire or accident, shall credit the unused portion of the annual ~~license~~ registration fee of ~~said~~ the vehicle toward the ~~license~~ registration fee of a replacement vehicle of equal registered weight. The amount of credit shall not exceed the ~~license~~ registration fee due on the replacement vehicle. The Tax Commission shall not be required to make a refund. If the replacement vehicle is to be registered at a greater weight, the applicant shall pay an additional sum equivalent to the difference between the unused portion of the annual ~~license~~ registration fee for the original motor vehicle and the ~~license~~ registration fee due for the replacement motor vehicle.

G. The ~~license~~ registration fees provided for in this section shall be paid each year whether or not the vehicle is operated on the public highway.

H. Notwithstanding the provision of any other statute in respect to the time for payment of ~~license~~ registration fees on

motor vehicles, if the total amount of the annual ~~license~~ registration fees due from any resident owner, either individual, partnership, or Oklahoma corporation, upon the registration, on or before January 15 of any year, of commercial trucks, truck-tractors, trailers or semitrailers exceeds the sum of One Thousand Dollars (\$1,000.00), the ~~license~~ registration fees may be paid in equal semiannual installments. The first installment shall be paid at the time of the application for registration of the vehicles and not later than January 15 of each year, and the second installment shall be paid on or before the first day of July of such year.

This subsection shall not operate to reduce the amount of the ~~license~~ registration fees due. If any installment is not paid on or before the date due, all unpaid installments of ~~license~~ registration fees for such year on each vehicle shall be deemed delinquent and immediately due and payable, and there shall be added a penalty of twenty-five cents (\$0.25) per day to the balance of the ~~license~~ registration fee due on each vehicle for each day the balance remains unpaid up to thirty (30) days, after which the penalty due on each vehicle shall be Twenty-five Dollars (\$25.00). The penalty for vehicles registered by weight in excess of eight thousand (8,000) pounds shall be an amount equal to the ~~license~~ registration fee. On and after the ~~30th~~ thirtieth day each such vehicle involved shall be considered as improperly ~~licensed~~ registered and as not currently registered, and all of the provisions of the Oklahoma Vehicle License and Registration Act relating to enforcement, including the provisions for the seizure and sale of vehicles not registered and not displaying current ~~license plates~~ registration decals, shall apply to the vehicles.

~~All~~ Except as otherwise provided in subsection B of Section 1110 of this title, all fees and taxes levied by ~~this act~~ the Oklahoma Vehicle License and Registration Act shall become and remain a first lien upon the vehicle upon which the fees or taxes are due until

paid. The lien shall have priority to all other liens. No title to any vehicle may be transferred until the unpaid balance on the vehicle has been paid in full. Provided that any unpaid balance of the ~~license~~ registration fees shall remain and become a lien against any and all property of the owner, both real and personal, for so long as any ~~license-tag~~ registration fee balance shall remain unpaid. Any unpaid balance under these provisions shall be immediately due and payable by the owner if any vehicle is sold, wrecked, or otherwise retired from service.

Any person electing to pay ~~license~~ registration fees on a semiannual installment basis, as herein authorized, shall be required to purchase a new ~~license-tag~~ registration decal for the last half and shall pay the sum of Four Dollars (\$4.00) for each ~~tag decal~~ to cover the costs ~~of the license tags~~. The ~~license tags~~ registration decals for each half shall be plainly marked in designating the half for which they were issued. A validation sticker may be used ~~in lieu of a metal tag~~ where appropriate. Such ~~license-tag~~ decal fee shall be, in addition to the ~~license~~ registration fees or any other fees, collected on each application as provided by statute and shall be apportioned according to the provisions of Section 1104 of this title.

I. Any person pulling or towing any vehicle intended to be resold, into or through this state, shall pay a fee of Three Dollars (\$3.00) for the vehicle towing and Three Dollars (\$3.00) for the one being towed. It shall be unlawful to operate any series of such units on the public highways of this state at a distance closer than five hundred (500) feet from each other. All fees and taxes levied by the terms and provisions of this section shall become and remain a first lien upon the vehicle upon which the fees or taxes are due until paid unless the vehicle is sold. The lien shall be prior, superior, and paramount to all other liens of whatsoever kind or character.

J. In addition to any other penalties prescribed by law, the following penalty shall be imposed by revenue enforcement officers upon any owner or operator of a commercial vehicle registered under the provisions of this section when the laden weight or combined laden weight of such vehicle is found to be in excess of that for which registered. The penalty shall be imposed each and every time a vehicle is found to be in violation of the registered laden weight or combined laden weight.

The penalty shall be Twenty Dollars (\$20.00) when such vehicle exceeds the laden weight or combined laden weight by two thousand one (2,001) or more pounds; thereafter, an additional Twenty Dollars (\$20.00) shall be imposed for each additional one thousand pounds or fraction thereof of weight in excess of the registered laden weight or combined laden weight.

SECTION 16. AMENDATORY 47 O.S. 2001, Section 1134, is amended to read as follows:

Section 1134. A. Upon each pickup, truck or truck-tractor owned and operated by one or more farmers and used primarily for farm use, and not for commercial or industrial purposes, the license registration fee shall be Thirty Dollars (\$30.00). As used in this section, the term "pickup" shall mean a small, light truck with an open back or box used for hauling and designed primarily for the carrying of property rather than people. The term "truck" shall mean a motor vehicle designed or converted primarily for carrying or hauling farm commodities, property, livestock, or equipment, rather than people.

B. The fees assessed pursuant to this section shall not apply to trailers or semitrailers or combinations thereof used primarily for farm use and for the transportation of products of the farm by the producer thereof. Such fee shall not apply to any trailer or semitrailer or combinations thereof when used primarily for the transportation of any article or articles owned by the operator of

such trailer or semitrailer or combinations thereof and not used in the furtherance of or incident to any commercial or industrial enterprise. The provisions of Section 1134.2 of this title shall apply to any trailers or semitrailers when used primarily for the transportation of logs, ties, stave bolts and posts, direct from forest to sawmill.

C. For the purpose of this section, a trailer or semitrailer or combination thereof owned by a farmer and used primarily for the purpose of transporting farm products to market or for the purpose of transporting to the farm material or things to be used thereon, and not for commercial or industrial purposes, may be registered for One Dollar (\$1.00); provided, any such trailer used by the holder of a certificate of convenience and necessity issued by the Oklahoma Corporation Commission or the Interstate Commerce Commission shall be conclusively presumed to be used in and for a commercial use, and must be ~~licensed~~ registered as such, paying the ~~license~~ registration fees provided in Section 1133 of this title.

D. Before a party shall be allowed to purchase a ~~license plate~~ registration decal or claim an exception or exemption under this section, the party shall:

1. Show an income tax Schedule F for the preceding year; or
2. Present a valid exemption card issued pursuant to the provisions of Section 1358.1 of Title 68 of the Oklahoma Statutes.

~~A violation shall be grounds for revocation of driver's license. Any person who signs said affidavit as required by this section when such person does not believe that the information in the affidavit is true or knows it is not true, upon conviction, shall be guilty of perjury and shall be punished as provided for by law.~~

E. Any person owning a truck upon which the farm truck ~~license~~ registration fee has been paid in Oklahoma for the current year and whose truck may be needed during grain harvests or other seasonal farming activities for hauling farm products other than his or her

own, or for hauling gravel, shale or other road materials for rural roads, may make application with the Oklahoma Tax Commission for a short term commercial ~~license~~ registration for such truck for a period of time not to exceed ninety (90) days.

F. Upon such application, the Tax Commission shall issue a temporary commercial truck ~~license~~ registration and register the truck upon payment of the following fees:

1. For thirty (30) days a fee equal to one-eighth (1/8) of the annual commercial ~~license~~ registration fee required for such truck.

2. For sixty (60) days a fee equal to one-fourth (1/4) of the annual commercial ~~license~~ registration fee required for such truck.

3. For ninety (90) days a fee equal to three-eighths (3/8) of the annual commercial ~~license~~ registration fee required for such truck.

G. Provided, however, the provisions of this section shall not apply to vehicles used for the transportation of persons or property for hire.

SECTION 17. AMENDATORY 47 O.S. 2001, Section 1134.1, is amended to read as follows:

Section 1134.1 The following ~~license~~ registration fees shall be paid annually to the Oklahoma Tax Commission upon the registration of the following vehicles~~;~~:

1. For each taxicab with a seating capacity of ten ~~(10)~~ or ~~less~~ fewer people, the ~~license~~ registration fee shall be Twenty-five Dollars (\$25.00);

2. For each school bus privately owned and used exclusively for transporting school children, the fee shall be based on seating capacity. For each such school bus with a seating capacity of fifteen ~~(15)~~ or ~~less~~ fewer people, the fee shall be Twenty Dollars (\$20.00). For each such school bus with a seating capacity of more than fifteen ~~(15)~~ people, the fee shall be Twenty-five Dollars (\$25.00);

3. For each intercity motor bus, the fee shall be based on seating capacity. For each intercity motor bus with a seating capacity of eleven ~~(11)~~ or ~~less~~ fewer people, the fee shall be Seven Dollars and fifty cents (\$7.50) per seat. For each intercity motor bus with a seating capacity of over eleven ~~(11)~~ but not more than twenty-three ~~(23)~~ people, the fee shall be Nine Dollars (\$9.00) per seat. For each intercity motor bus with a seating capacity of more than twenty-three ~~(23)~~ people, the fee shall be Ten Dollars (\$10.00) per seat. The seating capacity shall be determined by the number of seats available for passengers where separate seats are used, or by allowing sixteen (16) inches of seating space where separate seats are not used. Provided, that upon all intercity motor buses the license registration fees provided herein shall after the first year's registration in this or any other state be assessed at eighty percent (80%) of the fee computed and assessed as provided herein; and thereafter shall be assessed at eighty percent (80%) of the previous year's fee so computed for seven (7) successive years, but in no event shall the fee be thus reduced below Ten Dollars (\$10.00). Provided, that the Tax Commission shall issue intercity motor bus registration certificates for motor buses having a seating capacity of not exceeding five ~~(5)~~ seats upon application and payment of necessary fee without further requirements; and

4. For each intracity motor bus, the fee shall be based on seating capacity. For each intracity motor bus having a seating capacity of not to exceed eight ~~(8)~~ people, the fee shall be Forty Dollars (\$40.00). For each intracity motor bus having a seating capacity in excess of eight ~~(8)~~ and not more than fifteen ~~(15)~~ people, the fee shall be Five Dollars (\$5.00) per seat. For each intracity motor bus having a seating capacity in excess of fifteen ~~(15)~~ and not more than twenty-five ~~(25)~~ people, the fee shall be Six Dollars (\$6.00) per seat. For each intracity motor bus having a seating capacity in excess of twenty-five ~~(25)~~ people, the fee shall

be Seven Dollars (\$7.00) per seat. Provided that after the first year's registration of any intracity bus in this or any other state, the ~~license~~ registration fee thereon shall be assessed at eighty percent (80%) of the fee computed and assessed for the first year, and thereafter, the fee shall be assessed and computed at eighty percent (80%) of the previous year's fee, and shall be so computed and assessed for the next seven (7) consecutive years, after the first year; provided further, that the fee shall not be reduced to less than Twenty-five Dollars (\$25.00).

SECTION 18. AMENDATORY 47 O.S. 2001, Section 1134.2, is amended to read as follows:

Section 1134.2 A. For each motor vehicle used primarily for the purpose of transporting unfinished and unprocessed forest products, logs, ties, stave bolts and posts, originating and produced in this state from the point of production or harvesting to the point at which they shall first undergo any processing, preparation for processing, conversion or transformation from their raw or natural state, the annual ~~license~~ registration fee shall be Two Hundred Fifty Dollars (\$250.00).

B. The Oklahoma Tax Commission shall design appropriate license plates and registration decals for all vehicles registered pursuant to the provisions of this section. Such license plates shall be permanent in nature and shall be designed in such manner as to remain with the vehicle for the duration of the vehicle's life span or until the title is transferred or the vehicle is no longer used for the purposes specified in subsection A of this section.

C. For purposes of this section, the term "motor vehicle" means a truck or truck-tractor or the combination of a truck or truck-tractor pulling a trailer or semitrailer. When a truck or truck-tractor pulling a trailer or semitrailer is ~~licensed~~ registered pursuant to the provisions of this section, a ~~separate~~ registration decal and license plate shall be issued for each truck or truck-

tractor and for each trailer or semitrailer for the fee prescribed in subsection A of this section.

D. Before a person shall be allowed to ~~license~~ register a vehicle pursuant to the provisions of this section, the person shall sign an affidavit attesting to the fact that ~~he~~ the person is familiar with the purposes for which vehicles may be used and that ~~he~~ the person will not use such vehicle for any other purpose. Any person who signs such an affidavit when such person does not believe that the information in the affidavit is true or knows it is not true, upon conviction, shall be guilty of perjury and shall be punished as provided for by law. A violation of the provisions of this section shall also be grounds for revocation of driver's license.

SECTION 19. AMENDATORY 47 O.S. 2001, Section 1135, is amended to read as follows:

Section 1135 ~~License~~ Registration fees for a manufactured home registered pursuant to the provisions of Section ~~20~~ 1117 of this ~~act~~ title shall be as follows:

1. Where the actual retail selling price, excluding Oklahoma state taxes, is One Thousand Five Hundred Dollars (\$1,500.00) or less, the registration fee shall be Twenty-five Dollars (\$25.00);

2. Where the actual retail selling price, excluding Oklahoma state taxes, is in excess of One Thousand Five Hundred Dollars (\$1,500.00), the registration fee shall be Twenty-five Dollars (\$25.00) plus seventy-five cents (\$0.75) for each One Hundred Dollars (\$100.00) or any fraction thereof, in excess of One Thousand Five Hundred Dollars (\$1,500.00).

SECTION 20. AMENDATORY 47 O.S. 2001, Section 1137.1, is amended to read as follows:

Section 1137.1 A. ~~Except for vehicles, travel trailers or commercial trailers which display a current Oklahoma license tag,~~ Upon the purchase or transfer of ownership of a used motor

vehicle, travel trailer or commercial trailer, including an out-of-state purchase or transfer of the same, to a licensed used motor vehicle dealer, wholesale used motor vehicle dealer, used travel trailer dealer or used commercial trailer dealer, subsequently referred to in this section as "dealer", the dealer shall affix a used dealer's plate visible from the rear of the vehicle, travel trailer or commercial trailer. Such license plate shall expire on December 31 of each year. When the vehicle, travel trailer or commercial trailer is parked on the dealer's licensed place of business, it shall not be required to have a license plate of any kind affixed. A dealer shall obtain from the Oklahoma Tax Commission at a cost of Ten Dollars (\$10.00) a dealer license plate for demonstrating, transporting or any other normal business of a dealer. A dealer may obtain as many additional license plates as may be desired upon the payment of Ten Dollars (\$10.00) for each additional license plate. Use of the used dealer license plate by a licensed dealer for other than the purposes as set forth herein shall constitute grounds for revocation of the dealer's license. The ~~Oklahoma~~ Tax Commission shall design the official used dealer license plate to include the used dealer's license number issued to him or her each year by the Tax Commission or the Used Motor Vehicle and Parts Commission.

B. Upon the purchase or transfer of ownership of an out-of-state used motor vehicle, travel trailer or commercial trailer to a licensed dealer, the dealer shall make application for an Oklahoma certificate of title pursuant to the Oklahoma Vehicle License and Registration Act, ~~Section 1101 et seq. of Title 47 of the Oklahoma Statutes.~~ Upon receipt of the Oklahoma certificate of title, the dealer shall follow the procedure as set forth in subsection A of this section. Provided, nothing in this title shall be construed as requiring a dealer to register a used motor vehicle, travel trailer

or commercial trailer purchased in another state which will not be operated or sold in this state.

C. Upon sale or transfer of ownership of the used motor vehicle or travel trailer, the dealer shall place upon the reassignment portion of the certificate of title a tax stamp issued by the county treasurer of the county in which the dealer has his or her primary place of business. The tax stamp shall be issued upon payment of a fee of Three Dollars and fifty cents (\$3.50) and shall be in lieu of the dealer's ad valorem tax on the inventories of used motor vehicles or travel trailers but shall not relieve any other property of the dealer from ad valorem taxation.

D. Upon sale of a used motor vehicle or travel trailer to another licensed dealer, the selling dealer shall place the tax stamp required in subsection C of this section upon the certificate of title. The used dealer license plate or wholesale dealer license plate shall be removed by the selling dealer. The purchasing dealer shall, at time of purchase, place his or her dealer license plate on the used motor vehicle, travel trailer or commercial trailer as provided in subsection A of this section; provided, for vehicles, travel trailers or commercial trailers purchased by a licensed used dealer at an auction, in lieu of such placement of the dealer license plate, the auction may provide temporary documentation as approved by the ~~Director of the Motor Vehicle Division of the Oklahoma~~ Tax Commission for the purpose of transporting such vehicle to the purchaser's point of destination. Such temporary documentation shall be valid for two (2) days following the date of sale.

E. The purchaser of every used motor vehicle, travel trailer or commercial trailer, except as otherwise provided by law, shall obtain registration and title for the vehicle or trailer within thirty (30) days from the date of purchase of same. It shall be the responsibility of the selling dealer to place a temporary license

plate, in size similar to the permanent Oklahoma license plate but of a fibrous substance, upon a used motor vehicle, travel trailer or commercial trailer when a transaction is completed for the sale of ~~said~~ the vehicle. The temporary license plate shall show the license number which is issued to the dealer each year by the ~~Oklahoma~~ Tax Commission or the Used Motor Vehicle and Parts Commission, the date the used motor vehicle, travel trailer or commercial trailer was purchased and the company name of the selling dealer. Such temporary license plate shall be valid for a period of thirty (30) days from the date of purchase. Use of the temporary license by a dealer for other than the purposes set forth herein shall constitute grounds for revocation of the dealer's license to conduct business. The temporary license plate shall be affixed to the rear window of the vehicle sold. Purchasers of a commercial trailer shall affix the temporary license plate to the rear of the commercial trailer. The purchaser shall display the temporary license plate for a period not to exceed thirty (30) days or until registration and title are obtained as provided in this section.

The provisions of this subsection on temporary licenses shall apply to nonresidents who purchase a used motor vehicle, travel trailer or commercial trailer within this state that is to be licensed in another state. The nonresident purchaser shall be allowed to operate the vehicle or trailer within the state with a temporary license plate for a period not to exceed thirty (30) days from date of purchase without a registration decal thereon. Any nonresident purchaser found to be operating a used motor vehicle, travel trailer or commercial trailer within this state after thirty (30) days shall be subject to the registration fees of this state upon the same terms and conditions applying to residents of this state.

F. It shall be unlawful for any dealer to procure the registration and licensing of any used motor vehicle, travel trailer

or commercial trailer sold by the dealer or to act as the agent for the purchaser in the procurement of the registration and licensing of the purchaser's used vehicle, travel trailer or commercial trailer. A license of any dealer violating the provision of this section may be revoked.

G. Dealers following the procedure set forth herein shall not be required to register vehicles, travel trailers or commercial trailers to which this section applies, nor will the registration fee otherwise required be assessed. Provided, dealers shall not purchase or trade for a used motor vehicle, travel trailer or commercial trailer on which the registration therefor has been expired for a period exceeding thirty (30) days without obtaining current registration therefor.

H. Each motor vehicle dealer shall, in accordance with rules adopted by the Tax Commission, prepare and furnish to the Tax Commission information on each vehicle sold as required herein, except vehicles sold to another motor vehicle dealer. The information shall be furnished to the Tax Commission within thirty (30) days of the sale of each vehicle and shall include the name and full address of each purchaser. The Tax Commission shall consider receipt of information furnished as required herein as receipt of a notice to the Tax Commission of transfer of title for each vehicle listed and proceed in accordance with Section 1105 of this title.

SECTION 21. AMENDATORY 47 O.S. 2001, Section 1151, is amended to read as follows:

Section 1151. A. It shall be unlawful for any person to commit any of the following acts:

1. To lend or to sell to, or knowingly permit the use of by, one not entitled thereto any certificate of title, license plate or decal issued to or in the custody of the person so lending or permitting the use thereof;

2. To alter or in any manner change a certificate of title, registration certificate, license plate or decal issued under the laws of this or any other state;

3. To procure from another state or country, or display upon any vehicle owned by such person within this state, except as otherwise provided in the Oklahoma Vehicle License and Registration Act, any license plate issued by any state or country other than this state, unless there shall be displayed upon such vehicle at all times the current license plate and decal assigned to it by the Oklahoma Tax Commission or the vehicle shall display evidence that the vehicle is registered as a nonresident vehicle pursuant to rules promulgated by the Tax Commission, with the concurrence of the Department of Public Safety. A violation of the provisions of this paragraph shall be presumed to have occurred if a person who is the holder of an Oklahoma driver license operates a vehicle owned by such person on the public roads or highways of this state and there is not displayed on the vehicle a current Oklahoma license plate and decal, unless the vehicle is owned by a member of the Armed Forces of the United States assigned to duty in this state in compliance with official military or naval orders or the spouse of such a member of the Armed Forces;

4. To drive, operate or move, or for the owner to cause or permit to be driven or moved, upon the roads, streets or highways of this state, any vehicle loaded in excess of its registered laden weight, or which is ~~licensed~~ registered for a capacity less than the manufacturer's rated capacity as provided for in the Oklahoma Vehicle License and Registration Act;

5. To operate a vehicle without proper license plate or decal or on which all taxes due the state have not been paid;

6. To buy, sell or dispose of, or possess for sale, use or storage, any secondhand or used vehicle on which the registration or license fee has not been paid, as required by law, and on which

vehicle the person neglects, fails or refuses to display at all times the license plate or decal assigned to it;

7. To give a fictitious name or fictitious address or make any misstatement of facts in application for certificate of title and registration of a vehicle;

8. To purchase a ~~license plate~~ registration decal on an assigned certificate of title. This particular paragraph shall be applicable to all persons except bona fide registered dealers in used cars who are holders of current and valid used car dealers' licenses;

9. To operate a vehicle upon the highways of this state after the registration deadline for that vehicle without a proper ~~license plate~~ vehicle registration decal, as prescribed by the Oklahoma Vehicle License and Registration Act, for the current year;

10. For any owner of a vehicle registered on the basis of laden weight to fail or refuse to weigh or reweigh it when requested to do so by any enforcement officer charged with the duty of enforcing this law;

11. To operate or possess any vehicle which bears a motor number or serial number other than the original number placed thereon by the factory except a number duly assigned and authorized by the state;

12. For any motor license agent to release a license plate, a manufactured home registration receipt, decal or excise tax receipt to any unauthorized person or source, including any dealer in new or used motor vehicles. Violation of this paragraph shall constitute sufficient grounds for discharge of a motor license agent by the Tax Commission;

13. To operate any vehicle registered as a commercial vehicle without the lettering requirements of Section 1102 of this title; or

14. To operate any vehicle in violation of the provisions of Sections 7-600 through 7-606 of this title while displaying a yearly

decal issued to the owner who has filed an affidavit with the appropriate motor license agent in accordance with Section 7-607 of this title.

Any person convicted of violating any provision of this subsection, other than paragraph 3 of this subsection, shall be deemed guilty of a misdemeanor and, upon conviction, shall be punished by a fine not to exceed One Hundred Dollars (\$100.00). Any person convicted of violating the provisions of paragraph 3 of this subsection shall be deemed guilty of a misdemeanor and, upon conviction, shall be punished by a fine of not less than One Hundred Dollars (\$100.00) and not more than Five Hundred Dollars (\$500.00) and shall be required to obtain an Oklahoma license plate and a registration decal. Employees of the ~~Motor Vehicle Division of the~~ Tax Commission may be authorized by the Tax Commission to issue citations for a violation of paragraph 5 of this subsection. If a person convicted of violating the provisions of paragraph 5 of this subsection was issued a citation by a duly authorized employee of the ~~Motor Vehicle Division of the~~ Tax Commission, the fine herein levied shall be deposited to the Oklahoma Tax Commission Revolving Fund.

B. Except as otherwise authorized by law, it shall be unlawful to:

1. Lend or sell to, or knowingly permit the use of by, one not entitled thereto any certificate of title issued for a manufactured home, manufactured home registration receipt, manufactured home registration decal or excise tax receipt;

2. Alter or in any manner change a certificate of title issued for a manufactured home under the laws of this state or any other state;

3. Remove or alter a manufactured home registration receipt, manufactured home registration decal or excise tax receipt attached to a certificate of title or attach such receipts to a certificate

of title with the intent to misrepresent the payment of the required excise tax and registration fees;

4. Buy, sell, or dispose of, or possess for sale, use or storage any used manufactured home on which the registration fees or excise taxes have not been paid as required by law; or

5. Purchase identification, manufactured home registration receipt, manufactured home registration decal or excise tax receipt on an assigned certificate of title.

Anyone violating the provisions of this subsection, upon conviction, shall be guilty of a felony.

C. In the event a new vehicle is not registered within thirty (30) days from date of purchase, the penalty for the failure of the owner of the vehicle to register the vehicle within thirty (30) days shall be Twenty-five Dollars (\$25.00), provided that in no event shall the penalty exceed an amount equal to the license fee. The penalty for new commercial vehicles shall be equal to the license fee for such vehicles.

If a used vehicle is brought into Oklahoma by a resident of this state and is not registered within thirty (30) days, a penalty of twenty-five cents (\$0.25) per day shall be charged from the date of entry to the date of registration, such penalty to accrue for thirty (30) days, upon failure to register, at the end of which time the penalty shall be Twenty-five Dollars (\$25.00), provided that in no event shall the penalty exceed an amount equal to the ~~license~~ registration fee. The penalty for used commercial vehicles shall be equal to the ~~license~~ registration fee for such vehicles.

D. Any owner who knowingly makes or causes to be made any false statement of a fact required in this section to be shown in an application for the registration of one or more vehicles shall be deemed guilty of a misdemeanor and, upon conviction, shall be fined not more than One Thousand Dollars (\$1,000.00), or shall be

imprisoned in the county jail for not more than one (1) year, or by both such fine and imprisonment.

E. Self-propelled or motor-driven cycles, known and commonly referred to as "minibikes" and other similar trade names, shall not be registered under the provisions of the Oklahoma Vehicle License and Registration Act or be permitted to be operated on the streets or highways of this state. Provided that minibikes may be operated on the streets when used in a parade. Notwithstanding other provisions of this subsection, minibikes may be registered and operated in this state by food vendor services upon streets having a speed limit of thirty (30) miles per hour or less.

All minibikes offered for sale in this state shall bear the following notice to the customer:

"This machine is not manufactured or sold for operation on the public streets or highways. Since it is not provided with equipment required by law for street or highway use, all persons are cautioned that any operation of this vehicle upon a public street or highway will be in violation of the motor vehicle laws of this state and will subject the violator to arrest."

Transfers and sales of such vehicles shall be subject to sales tax and not motor vehicle excise taxes.

The provisions of this subsection shall also apply to those motor-driven or operated vehicles known as "golf carts", "go-carts" and other motor vehicles which are manufactured principally for use off the streets and highways. Provided that golf carts owned by the Oklahoma Tourism and Recreation Department, and operated by employees or agents of the Department or employees of independent management companies working on behalf of the Department, may be operated on the streets and highways of this state during daylight hours or under regulation developed by the Oklahoma Tourism and Recreation Commission, when such streets and highways are located

within the boundaries of a state park. The Department shall have warning signs placed at the entrance and other locations at those state parks allowing golf carts to be operated on the streets and highways of this state located within the boundaries of those state parks. The warning signs shall state that golf carts may be on such streets and highways and that motor vehicle operators shall take special precautions to be alert for the presence of the golf carts on such streets and highways.

The provisions of this subsection shall also apply to those motor-driven or operated vehicles known as "all-terrain vehicles", which are manufactured principally for use off the roads. Provided, that all-terrain vehicles may be operated on unpaved roads which are located within the boundaries of any property of the Forest Service of the United States Department of Agriculture.

F. Any person violating paragraph 3 or 6 of subsection A of this section, in addition to the penal provisions provided in this section, shall pay as additional penalty a sum equal to the amount of ~~license~~ registration fees due on such vehicle or registration fees due on a manufactured home known to be in violation and such amount is hereby declared to be a lien upon the vehicle as provided in the Oklahoma Vehicle License and Registration Act. In addition to the penalty provisions provided in this section, any person violating paragraph 3 of subsection A of this section shall be deemed guilty of a misdemeanor and shall, upon conviction, be punished by a fine of One Hundred Dollars (\$100.00) and the suspension of such person's driver license and right to operate the vehicle.

G. Each violation of any provision of the Oklahoma Vehicle License and Registration Act for each and every day such violation has occurred shall constitute a separate offense.

H. Anyone violating any of the provisions heretofore enumerated in this section shall be guilty of a misdemeanor and, upon

conviction, shall be fined not less than Ten Dollars (\$10.00) and not to exceed One Hundred Dollars (\$100.00).

I. Any violation of any portion of the Oklahoma Vehicle License and Registration Act where a specific penalty has not been imposed shall constitute a misdemeanor and, upon conviction thereof, the person having violated it shall be fined not less than Ten Dollars (\$10.00) and not to exceed One Hundred Dollars (\$100.00).

J. Any provision of Section 1101 et seq. of this title providing for proportional registration under reciprocal agreements and the International Registration Plan that relates to the promulgation of rules and regulations shall not be subject to the provisions of this section.

SECTION 22. REPEALER 47 O.S. 2001, Section 1113A, is hereby repealed.

SECTION 23. This act shall become effective January 1, 2003.

48-2-2647 CD 6/12/2015 11:24:29 AM